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Account Description

Total

1050-Current Assets

1005-Cash

13,869,850

1010-Cash Advances and Working Funds

700

1020-Interest Special Deposits

0

1030-Dividend Special Deposits

0

1040-Other Special Deposits

1,117,270

1060-Term Deposits

0

1070-Current Investments

0

1100-Customer Accounts Receivable

9,450,000

1102-Accounts Receivable - Services

0

1104-Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work

0

1105-Accounts Receivable - Merchandise, Jobbing, etc.

0

1110-Other Accounts Receivable

12,720

1120-Accrued Utility Revenues

8,541,314

1130-Accumulated Provision for Uncollectable Accounts -- Credit

(800,000)

1140-Interest and Dividends Receivable

0

1150-Rents Receivable

0

1170-Notes Receivable

0

1180-Prepayments

184,573

1190-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets

0

1200-Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies

0

1210-Notes Receivable from Associated Companies

0

1050-Current Assets Total

32,376,427

1100-Inventory

1305-Fuel Stock

0

1330-Plant Materials and Operating Supplies

1,502,142

1340-Merchandise

0

1350-Other Material and Supplies

0

1100-Inventory Total

1,502,142

1150-Non-Current Assets

1405-Long Term Investments in Non-Associated Companies

1408-Long Term Receivable - Street Lighting Transfer

1410-Other Special or Collateral Funds

742,880

1415-Sinking Funds

1425-Unamortized Debt Expense

1445-Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt--Debit

1455-Unamortized Deferred Foreign Currency Translation Gains and Losses

1460-Other Non-Current Assets

1465-0.M.E.R.S. Past Service Costs

1470-Past Service Costs - Employee Future Benefits

1475-Past Service Costs -Other Pension Plans

1480-Portfolio Investments - Associated Companies

oO|O|O|0O|0|0|0|o|Oo
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1485-Investment In Subsidiary Companies - Significant Influence 0
1490-Investment in Subsidiary Companies 0
1150-Non-Current Assets Total 742,880
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges
1505-Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
1508-Other Regulatory Assets 890,197
1510-Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 0
1515-Emission Allowance Inventory 0
1516-Emission Allowance Withheld 0
1518-RCVA Retail 27,549
1521-Special Purpose Charge Assessment variance Account 0
1525-Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 82
1530-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1531-Renewable Generation Connection Cap 8,921
1540-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1545-Development Charge Deposits/ Receivables 0
1548-RCVA - Service Transaction Request (STR) 322,215
1550-LV Charges - Variance 0
1555-Smart Meters Recovery 5,309,287
1556-Smart Meters OM & A 910,401
1562-Deferred PILs 0
1563-Deferred PILs - Contra 642,290
1565-C & DM Costs 1,450
1566-C & DM Costs Contra (1,450)
1568-LRAM Variance 0
1570-Qualifying Transition Costs 0
1571-Pre Market CofP Variance 0
1572-Extraordinary Event Losses 0
1574-Deferred Rate Impact Amounts 0
1580-RSVA - Wholesale Market Services (2,350,638)
1582-RSVA - One-Time 351,954
1584-RSVA - Network Charges 290,175
1586-RSVA - Connection Charges 16,161
1588-RSVA - Commaodity (Power) (2,582,682)
1589-RSVA Global Adjustment 2,053,302
1590-Recovery of Regulatory Assets (25% of 2002 bal.) 0
1592-PlLs and Tax Variance for 2006 & Subsequent Years 0
1595-Disposition and Recovery of Regulatory Balances (2,605,073)
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges Total 3,284,141
1450-Distribution Plant
1805-Land 181,961
1806-Land Rights 70,668
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 1,163,732
1810-Leasehold Improvements 0
1815-Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV 4,507,912
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 74,427
1825-Storage Battery Equipment 0
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 16,558,510
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1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 13,075,515
1840-Underground Conduit 13,805,349
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices 19,292,376
1850-Line Transformers 17,828,858
1855-Services 1,404,564
1860-Meters 4,149,912
1865-Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0
1450-Distribution Plant Total 92,113,783
1500-General Plant

1905-Land 0
1906-Land Rights 0
1908-Buildings and Fixtures 0
1910-Leasehold Improvements 0
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 5,000
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 1,000
1925-Computer Software 616,229
1930-Transportation Equipment 3,358,111
1935-Stores Equipment 0
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 165,292
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 0
1950-Power Operated Equipment 0
1955-Communication Equipment 0
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 0
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0
1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 743,319
1985-Sentinel Lighting Rentals 0
1990-Other Tangible Property 0
1995-Contributions and Grants (4,475,073)
1500-General Plant Total 413,878

1550-Other Capital Assets
2005-Property Under Capital Leases 0
2010-Electric Plant Purchased or Sold 0
2020-Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified 0
2030-Electric Plant and Equipment Leased to Others 0
2040-Electric Plant Held for Future Use 0
2050-Completed Construction Not Classified--Electric 0
2055-Construction Work in Progress--Electric 24,009
2060-Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 0
2065-Other Electric Plant Adjustment 0
2070-Other Utility Plant 0
2075-Non-Utility Property Owned or Under Capital Lease 0
1550-Other Capital Assets Total 24,009

1600-Accumulated Amortization

2105-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property, Plant and Equipment

(32,227,071)

2120-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles

0
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2140-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 0
2160-Accumulated Amortization of Other Utility Plant 0
2180-Accumulated Amortization of Non-Utility Property 0

1600-Accumulated Amortization Total (32,227,071)

| Total Assets | 98,230,188 |
1650-Current Liabilities
2205-Accounts Payable 10,845,244
2208-Customer Credit Balances 0
2210-Current Portion of Customer Deposits 1,117,270
2215-Dividends Declared 0
2220-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities (522,124)
2225-Notes and Loans Payable 0
2240-Accounts Payable to Associated Companies 1,140,000
2242-Notes Payable to Associated Companies 0
2250-Debt Retirement Charges (DRC) Payable 528,245
2252-Transmission Charges Payable 0
2254-Electric Safety Authority Fees Payable 0
2256-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties Payable 0
2260-Current Portion of Long Term Debt 991,134
2262-Ontario Hydro Debt - Current Portion 0
2264-Pensions and Employee Benefits - Current Portion 0
2268-Accrued Interest on Long Term Debt 1,419,904
2270-Matured Long Term Debt 0
2272-Matured Interest on Long Term Debt 0
2285-0Obligations Under Capital Leases--Current 0
2290-Commodity Taxes 0
2292-Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable 217,000
2294-Accrual for Taxes, "Payments in Lieu" of Taxes, Etc. (982,400)
2296-Future Income Taxes - Current (212,000)
1650-Current Liabilities Total 14,542,273
1700-Non-Current Liabilities
2305-Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages 0
2306-Employee Future Benefits 2,124,763
2308-Other Pensions - Past Service Liability 0
2310-Vested Sick Leave Liability 243,000
2315-Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds 0
2320-Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities 0
2325-Obligations Under Capital Lease--Non-Current 0
2330-Devolpment Charge Fund 0
2335-Long Term Customer Deposits 742,880
2340-Collateral Funds Liability 0
2345-Unamortized Premium on Long Term Debt 0
2348-0.M.E.R.S. - Past Service Liability - Long Term Portion 0
2350-Future Income Tax - Non-Current (1,300,582)
2405-Other Regulatory Liabilities 0
2410-Deferred Gains From Disposition of Utility Plant 0
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0

2425-Other Deferred Credits

2,500,000

2440-Deferred Revenues

0

1700-Non-Current Liabilities Total

4,310,061

1800-Long-Term Debt

2505-Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion

0

2510-Debenture Advances

15,930,193

2515-Required Bonds

0

2520-Other Long Term Debt

554,860

2525-Term Bank Loans - Long Term Portion

4,033,000

2530-Ontario Hydro Debt Outstanding - Long Term Portion

0

2550-Advances from Associated Companies

24,189,168

1800-Long-Term Debt Total

44,707,221

1850-Shareholders' Equity

3005-Common Shares Issued

22,437,505

3008-Preference Shares Issued

3010-Contributed Surplus

3020-Donations Received

3022-Devolpment Charges Transferred to Equity

3026-Capital Stock Held in Treasury

3030-Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital

3035-Installments Received on Capital Stock

o|Oo|Oo|0o|0|0|o

3040-Appropriated Retained Earnings

(424,437)

3045-Unappropriated Retained Earnings

12,401,720

3046-Balance Transferred From Income

1,005,845

3047-Appropriations of Retained Earnings - Current Period

0

3048-Dividends Payable-Preference Shares

0

3049-Dividends Payable-Common Shares

(750,000)

3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings

0

3065-Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings

0

1850-Shareholders' Equity Total

34,670,633

Total Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity

| 98,230,188 |

Balance Sheet Total

©) |
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Account Description

| Total

3000-Sales of Electricity

4006-Residential Energy Sales (22,517,046)
4010-Commercial Energy Sales 0
4015-Industrial Energy Sales 0
4020-Energy Sales to Large Users 0
4025-Street Lighting Energy Sales (530,840)
4030-Sentinel Energy Sales (34,011)
4035-General Energy Sales (46,161,137)
4040-Other Energy Sales to Public Authorities 0
4045-Energy Sales to Railroads and Railways 0
4050-Revenue Adjustment (346,054)
4055-Energy Sales for Resale (3,314,683)
4060-Interdepartmental Energy Sales 0
4062-WMS (5,172,980)
4064-Billed WMS-One Time 0
4066-NS (7,041,917)
4068-CS (4,741,622)
4075-LV Charges 0

3000-Sales of Electricity Total (89,860,290)

3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution

4080-Distribution Services Revenue

(14,156,066)

4080-2-SSS Revenue (103,910)
4082-RS Rev (31,557)
4084-Serv Tx Requests (18,441)
4090-Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales 0

3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution Total

(14,309,974)

3100-Other Operating Revenues

4205-Interdepartmental Rents 0
4210-Rent from Electric Property (106,000)
4215-Other Utility Operating Income 0
4220-Other Electric Revenues 0
4225-Late Payment Charges (122,798)
4230-Sales of Water and Water Power 0
4235-Miscellaneous Service Revenues (403,588)
4240-Provision for Rate Refunds 0
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4245-Government Assistance Directly Credited to Income 0
3100-Other Operating Revenues Total (632,386)
3150-Other Income & Deductions
4305-Regulatory Debits 0
4310-Regulatory Credits 0
4315-Revenues from Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4320-Expenses of Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4324-Special Purpose Charge Recovery 0
4325-Revenues from Merchandise, Jobbing, Etc. 0
4330-Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing, Etc 0
4335-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges 0
4340-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Investments 0
4345-Gains from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4350-Losses from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4355-Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property 0
4360-Loss on Disposition of Utility and Other Property 0
4365-Gains from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4370-Losses from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4375-Revenues from Non-Utility Operations (3,897,395)
4380-Expenses of Non-Utility Operations 3,897,395
4385-Expenses of Non-Utility Operations 0
4390-Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income (12,800)
4395-Rate-Payer Benefit Including Interest 0
4398-Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses, Including Amortization 0
3150-Other Income & Deductions Total (12,800)
3200-Investment Income
4405-Interest and Dividend Income (271,024)
4415-Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies 0
3200-Investment Income Total (271,024)
3350-Power Supply Expenses
4705-Power Purchased 72,903,663
4708-WMS 5,173,092
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments 0
4712-0 0
4714-NW 7,041,917
4715-System Control and Load Dispatching 0
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4716-NCN 4,741,621
4720-Other Expenses 0
4725-Competition Transition Expense 0
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense 0
4750-LV Charges 0
3350-Power Supply Expenses Total 89,860,293
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation
5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 226,223
5010-Load Dispatching 45,927
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 29,252
5014-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Labour 7,906
5015-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 75,365
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 1,743
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 400
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 985
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 10,893
5030-Overhead Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers - Operation 2,989
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 670
5045-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 9,508
5050-Underground Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation 665
5060-Street Lighting and Signal System Expense 0
5065-Meter Expense 464,155
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 710
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 0
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 221,832
5090-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 0
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 7,343
5096-Other Rent 4,732
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total 1,111,298
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance
5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 432,478
5110-Maintenance of Structures 1,559
5112-Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment 0
5114-Mtaint Dist Stn Equip 6,747
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 32,442
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5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 184,573
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 192,135
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 415,898
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 52,661
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 70,158
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services 109,059
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 305,006
5165-Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems 0
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 0
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses 0
5175-Maintenance of Meters 153
5178-Customer Installations Expenses - Leased Property 0
5195-Maintenance of Other Installations on Customer Premises 0
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total 1,802,869
3650-Billing and Collecting
5305-Supervision 223,136
5310-Meter Reading Expense 274,993
5315-Customer Billing 542,425
5320-Collecting 359,916
5325-Collecting - Cash Over and Short 0
5330-Collection Charges 1,000
5335-Bad Debt Expense 300,000
5340-Miscellaneous Customer Accounts Expenses 506,862
3650-Billing and Collecting Total 2,208,332
3700-Community Relations
5405-Supervision 0
5410-Community Relations - Sundry 156,330
5415-Energy Conservation 0
5420-Community Safety Program 12,807
5425-Miscellaneous Customer Service and Informational Expenses 0
3700-Community Relations Total 169,137
3800-Administrative and General Expenses
5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 533,369
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 340,676
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 875,651
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 58,468
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5625-Administrative Expense Transferred-Credit 0
5630-Outside Services Employed 138,735
5635-Property Insurance 100,861
5640-Injuries and Damages 0
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 302,000
5650-Franchise Requirements 57,569
5655-Regulatory Expenses 135,500
5660-General Advertising Expenses 13,600
5665-Miscellaneous Expenses 8,341
5670-Rent 0
5675-Maintenance of General Plant 0
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 16,400
5681-Special Purpose Charge Expense 0
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties 60,000
5695-OM&A Contra Account (120,132)
3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total 2,521,038
3850-Amortization Expense
5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant and Equipment 3,837,203
5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant 0
5715-Amortization of Intangibles and Other Electric Plant 0
5720-Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustments 0
5725-Miscellaneous Amortization 0
5730-Amortization of Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
5735-Amortization of Deferred Development Costs 0
5740-Amortization of Deferred Charges 0
3850-Amortization Expense Total 3,837,203
3900-Interest Expense
6005-Interest on Long Term Debt 745,070
6010-Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense 0
6015-Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit 0
6020-Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt 0
6025-Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit 0
6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 1,419,904
6035-Other Interest Expense 161,488
6040-Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Credit 0
6042-Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction (46,000)
6045-Interest Expense on Capital Lease Obligations 0
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| 2,280,462 |

3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6105-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 5,091
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Total 5,091
4000-Income Taxes
6110-Income Taxes (151,499)
6115-Provision for Future Income Taxes 436,405
4000-Income Taxes Total 284,906
4100-Extraordinary & Other Iltems
6205-Donations 0
6210-Life Insurance 0
6215-Penalties 0
6225-Other Deductions 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items Total 0
Net Income - (Gain)/Loss (1,005,845)
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Account Description Total
1050-Current Assets
1005-Cash 10,614,700
1010-Cash Advances and Working Funds 700
1020-Interest Special Deposits 0
1030-Dividend Special Deposits 0
1040-Other Special Deposits 1,125,000
1060-Term Deposits 0
1070-Current Investments 0
1100-Customer Accounts Receivable 9,639,000
1102-Accounts Receivable - Services 0
1104-Accounts Receivable - Recoverable Work 0
1105-Accounts Receivable - Merchandise, Jobbing, etc. 0
1110-Other Accounts Receivable 0
1120-Accrued Utility Revenues 8,765,755
1130-Accumulated Provision for Uncollectable Accounts -- Credit (816,000)
1140-Interest and Dividends Receivable 0
1150-Rents Receivable 0
1170-Notes Receivable 0
1180-Prepayments 153,529
1190-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Assets 0
1200-Accounts Receivable from Associated Companies 0
1210-Notes Receivable from Associated Companies 0

1050-Current Assets Total 29,482,684

1100-Inventory
1305-Fuel Stock 0
1330-Plant Materials and Operating Supplies 1,502,142
1340-Merchandise 0
1350-Other Material and Supplies 0

1100-Inventory Total 1,502,142
1150-Non-Current Assets
1405-Long Term Investments in Non-Associated Companies 0
1408-Long Term Receivable - Street Lighting Transfer 0
1410-Other Special or Collateral Funds 500,000
1415-Sinking Funds 0
1425-Unamortized Debt Expense 0
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1445-Unamortized Discount on Long-Term Debt--Debit 0
1455-Unamortized Deferred Foreign Currency Translation Gains and Losses 0
1460-Other Non-Current Assets 0
1465-0.M.E.R.S. Past Service Costs 0
1470-Past Service Costs - Employee Future Benefits 0
1475-Past Service Costs -Other Pension Plans 0
1480-Portfolio Investments - Associated Companies 0
1485-Investment In Subsidiary Companies - Significant Influence 0
1490-Investment in Subsidiary Companies 0
1150-Non-Current Assets Total 500,000
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges
1505-Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
1508-Other Regulatory Assets 1,090,695
1510-Preliminary Survey and Investigation Charges 0
1515-Emission Allowance Inventory 0
1516-Emission Allowance Withheld 0
1518-RCVA Retail 26,069
1521-Special Purpose Charge Assessment variance Account 0
1525-Miscellaneous Deferred Debits 82
1530-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1531-Renewable Generation Connection Cap 9,048
1540-Deferred Losses from Disposition of Utility Plant 0
1545-Development Charge Deposits/ Receivables 0
1548-RCVA - Service Transaction Request (STR) 336,284
1550-LV Charges - Variance 0
1555-Smart Meters Recovery 973,287
1556-Smart Meters OM & A 965,741
1562-Deferred PILs 0
1563-Deferred PILs - Contra (48,847)
1565-C & DM Costs 1,450
1566-C & DM Costs Contra (1,450)
1568-LRAM Variance 0
1570-Qualifying Transition Costs 0
1571-Pre Market CofP Variance 0
1572-Extraordinary Event Losses 0
1574-Deferred Rate Impact Amounts 0
1580-RSVA - Wholesale Market Services (1,648,435)
1582-RSVA - One-Time 355,849
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1584-RSVA - Network Charges 860,012
1586-RSVA - Connection Charges 474,764
1588-RSVA - Commaodity (Power) (2,281,778)
1589-RSVA Global Adjustment 731,277
1590-Recovery of Regulatory Assets (25% of 2002 bal.) 0
1592-PILs and Tax Variance for 2006 & Subsequent Years 0
1595-Disposition and Recovery of Regulatory Balances (1,028,595)
1200-Other Assets and Deferred Charges Total 815,453
1450-Distribution Plant
1805-Land 181,961
1806-Land Rights 70,668
1808-Buildings and Fixtures 1,163,732
1810-Leasehold Improvements 0
1815-Transformer Station Equipment - Normally Primary above 50 kV 4,507,912
1820-Distribution Station Equipment - Normally Primary below 50 kV 74,427
1825-Storage Battery Equipment 0
1830-Poles, Towers and Fixtures 16,773,510
1835-Overhead Conductors and Devices 14,033,515
1840-Underground Conduit 13,840,349
1845-Underground Conductors and Devices 20,148,476
1850-Line Transformers 18,330,858
1855-Services 1,514,564
1860-Meters 9,684,747
1865-Other Installations on Customer's Premises 0
1450-Distribution Plant Total 100,324,718
1500-General Plant
1905-Land 0
1906-Land Rights 0
1908-Buildings and Fixtures 0
1910-Leasehold Improvements 0
1915-Office Furniture and Equipment 5,000
1920-Computer Equipment - Hardware 120,439
1925-Computer Software 928,192
1930-Transportation Equipment 3,558,111
1935-Stores Equipment 0
1940-Tools, Shop and Garage Equipment 190,292
1945-Measurement and Testing Equipment 0
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1950-Power Operated Equipment 0
1955-Communication Equipment 0
1960-Miscellaneous Equipment 0
1970-Load Management Controls - Customer Premises 0
1975-Load Management Controls - Utility Premises 0
1980-System Supervisory Equipment 893,319
1985-Sentinel Lighting Rentals 0
1990-Other Tangible Property 0
1995-Contributions and Grants (4,678,513)
1500-General Plant Total 1,016,840
1550-Other Capital Assets
2005-Property Under Capital Leases 0
2010-Electric Plant Purchased or Sold 0
2020-Experimental Electric Plant Unclassified 0
2030-Electric Plant and Equipment Leased to Others 0
2040-Electric Plant Held for Future Use 0
2050-Completed Construction Not Classified--Electric 0
2055-Construction Work in Progress--Electric 24,009
2060-Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 0
2065-Other Electric Plant Adjustment 0
2070-Other Utility Plant 0
2075-Non-Utility Property Owned or Under Capital Lease 0
1550-Other Capital Assets Total 24,009
1600-Accumulated Amortization
2105-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Property, Plant and Equipment (36,392,925)
2120-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Utility Plant - Intangibles 0
2140-Accumulated Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustment 0
2160-Accumulated Amortization of Other Utility Plant 0
2180-Accumulated Amortization of Non-Utility Property 0
1600-Accumulated Amortization Total (36,392,925)
Total Assets | 97,272,921 |
1650-Current Liabilities
2205-Accounts Payable 10,979,891
2208-Customer Credit Balances 0
2210-Current Portion of Customer Deposits 1,125,000
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2215-Dividends Declared 0
2220-Miscellaneous Current and Accrued Liabilities 0
2225-Notes and Loans Payable 0
2240-Accounts Payable to Associated Companies 1,162,800
2242-Notes Payable to Associated Companies 0
2250-Debt Retirement Charges (DRC) Payable 468,130
2252-Transmission Charges Payable 0
2254-Electric Safety Authority Fees Payable 0
2256-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties Payable 0
2260-Current Portion of Long Term Debt 1,038,479
2262-Ontario Hydro Debt - Current Portion 0
2264-Pensions and Employee Benefits - Current Portion 0
2268-Accrued Interest on Long Term Debt 1,419,904
2270-Matured Long Term Debt 0
2272-Matured Interest on Long Term Debt 0
2285-0Obligations Under Capital Leases--Current 0
2290-Commodity Taxes 0
2292-Payroll Deductions / Expenses Payable 0
2294-Accrual for Taxes, "Payments in Lieu" of Taxes, Etc. (314,176)
2296-Future Income Taxes - Current (216,240)
1650-Current Liabilities Total 15,663,788
1700-Non-Current Liabilities
2305-Accumulated Provision for Injuries and Damages 0
2306-Employee Future Benefits 2,167,258
2308-Other Pensions - Past Service Liability 0
2310-Vested Sick Leave Liability 74,460
2315-Accumulated Provision for Rate Refunds 0
2320-Other Miscellaneous Non-Current Liabilities 0
2325-Obligations Under Capital Lease--Non-Current 0
2330-Devolpment Charge Fund 0
2335-Long Term Customer Deposits 500,000
2340-Collateral Funds Liability 0
2345-Unamortized Premium on Long Term Debt 0
2348-0.M.E.R.S. - Past Service Liability - Long Term Portion 0
2350-Future Income Tax - Non-Current (379,762)
2405-Other Regulatory Liabilities 0
2410-Deferred Gains From Disposition of Utility Plant 0
2415-Unamortized Gain on Reacquired Debt 0
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2425-Other Deferred Credits 1,250,000
2440-Deferred Revenues 0
1700-Non-Current Liabilities Total 3,611,956
1800-Long-Term Debt

2505-Debentures Outstanding - Long Term Portion 0
2510-Debenture Advances 15,445,714
2515-Required Bonds 0
2520-Other Long Term Debt 565,957
2525-Term Bank Loans - Long Term Portion 3,479,000
2530-Ontario Hydro Debt Outstanding - Long Term Portion 0
2550-Advances from Associated Companies 24,189,168
1800-Long-Term Debt Total 43,679,839

1850-Shareholders' Equity
3005-Common Shares Issued 22,437,505
3008-Preference Shares Issued 0
3010-Contributed Surplus 0
3020-Donations Received 0
3022-Devolpment Charges Transferred to Equity 0
3026-Capital Stock Held in Treasury 0
3030-Miscellaneous Paid-In Capital 0
3035-Installments Received on Capital Stock 0
3040-Appropriated Retained Earnings (485,837)
3045-Unappropriated Retained Earnings 12,471,066
3046-Balance Transferred From Income 644,604
3047-Appropriations of Retained Earnings - Current Period 0
3048-Dividends Payable-Preference Shares 0
3049-Dividends Payable-Common Shares (750,000)
3055-Adjustment to Retained Earnings 0
3065-Unappropriated Undistributed Subsidiary Earnings 0
1850-Shareholders' Equity Total 34,317,338
Total Liabilities & Shareholder's Equity 97,272,921
Balance Sheet Total (0)
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Account Description

Total

3000-Sales of Electricity

4006-Residential Energy Sales

(24,527,477)

4010-Commercial Energy Sales 0
4015-Industrial Energy Sales 0
4020-Energy Sales to Large Users 0
4025-Street Lighting Energy Sales (681,375)
4030-Sentinel Energy Sales (40,008)
4035-General Energy Sales (52,633,295)
4040-Other Energy Sales to Public Authorities 0
4045-Energy Sales to Railroads and Railways 0
4050-Revenue Adjustment 151,688
4055-Energy Sales for Resale (3,686,100)
4060-Interdepartmental Energy Sales 0
4062-WMS (5,331,110)
4064-Billed WMS-One Time 0
4066-NS (6,795,513)
4068-CS (4,479,637)
4075-LV Charges 0

3000-Sales of Electricity Total (98,022,827)

3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution

4080-Distribution Services Revenue

(14,365,044)

4080-2-SSS Revenue (104,830)
4082-RS Rev (38,639)
4084-Serv Tx Requests (11,660)

0

4090-Electric Services Incidental to Energy Sales

3050-Revenues From Services - Distirbution Total

(14,520,173)

3100-Other Operating Revenues

4205-Interdepartmental Rents 0
4210-Rent from Electric Property (108,120)
4215-Other Utility Operating Income 0
4220-Other Electric Revenues 0
4225-Late Payment Charges (120,000)
4230-Sales of Water and Water Power 0
4235-Miscellaneous Service Revenues (422,134)
4240-Provision for Rate Refunds 0
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4245-Government Assistance Directly Credited to Income 0
3100-Other Operating Revenues Total (650,254)
3150-Other Income & Deductions
4305-Regulatory Debits 0
4310-Regulatory Credits 0
4315-Revenues from Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4320-Expenses of Electric Plant Leased to Others 0
4324-Special Purpose Charge Recovery 0
4325-Revenues from Merchandise, Jobbing, Etc. 0
4330-Costs and Expenses of Merchandising, Jobbing, Etc 0
4335-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Hedges 0
4340-Profits and Losses from Financial Instrument Investments 0
4345-Gains from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4350-Losses from Disposition of Future Use Utility Plant 0
4355-Gain on Disposition of Utility and Other Property 0
4360-Loss on Disposition of Utility and Other Property 0
4365-Gains from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4370-Losses from Disposition of Allowances for Emission 0
4375-Revenues from Non-Utility Operations (5,165,361)
4380-Expenses of Non-Utility Operations 5,165,361
4385-Expenses of Non-Utility Operations 0
4390-Miscellaneous Non-Operating Income (20,000)
4395-Rate-Payer Benefit Including Interest 0
4398-Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses, Including Amortization 0
3150-Other Income & Deductions Total (20,000)
3200-Investment Income
4405-Interest and Dividend Income (275,539)
4415-Equity in Earnings of Subsidiary Companies 0
3200-Investment Income Total (275,539)
3350-Power Supply Expenses
4705-Power Purchased 81,416,568
4708-WMS 5,331,110
4710-Cost of Power Adjustments 0
4712-0 0
4714-NW 6,795,513
4715-System Control and Load Dispatching 0
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4716-NCN 4,479,637
4720-Other Expenses 0
4725-Competition Transition Expense 0
4730-Rural Rate Assistance Expense 0
4750-LV Charges 0
3350-Power Supply Expenses Total 98,022,828
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation
5005-Operation Supervision and Engineering 273,250
5010-Load Dispatching 114,745
5012-Station Buildings and Fixtures Expense 29,322
5014-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Labour 24,787
5015-Transformer Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 102,609
5016-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Labour 1,962
5017-Distribution Station Equipment - Operation Supplies and Expenses 520
5020-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 1,962
5025-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 12,752
5030-Overhead Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5035-Overhead Distribution Transformers - Operation 5,154
5040-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Labour 0
5045-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Operation Supplies and Expenses 11,990
5050-Underground Subtransmission Feeders - Operation 0
5055-Underground Distribution Transformers - Operation 0
5060-Street Lighting and Signal System Expense 0
5065-Meter Expense 593,094
5070-Customer Premises - Operation Labour 5,292
5075-Customer Premises - Materials and Expenses 0
5085-Miscellaneous Distribution Expense 329,209
5090-Underground Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 0
5095-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Rental Paid 25,403
5096-Other Rent 44,455
3500-Distribution Expenses - Operation Total 1,576,506
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance
5105-Maintenance Supervision and Engineering 499,599
5110-Maintenance of Structures 2,158
5112-Maintenance of Transformer Station Equipment 0
5114-Mtaint Dist Stn Equip 9,805
5120-Maintenance of Poles, Towers and Fixtures 75,414
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5125-Maintenance of Overhead Conductors and Devices 242,022
5130-Maintenance of Overhead Services 247,604
5135-Overhead Distribution Lines and Feeders - Right of Way 499,535
5145-Maintenance of Underground Conduit 56,902
5150-Maintenance of Underground Conductors and Devices 82,311
5155-Maintenance of Underground Services 124,877
5160-Maintenance of Line Transformers 192,863
5165-Maintenance of Street Lighting and Signal Systems 0
5170-Sentinel Lights - Labour 0
5172-Sentinel Lights - Materials and Expenses 0
5175-Maintenance of Meters 0
5178-Customer Installations Expenses - Leased Property 0
5195-Maintenance of Other Installations on Customer Premises 0
3550-Distribution Expenses - Maintenance Total 2,033,090
3650-Billing and Collecting
5305-Supervision 292,372
5310-Meter Reading Expense 240,556
5315-Customer Billing 964,616
5320-Collecting 536,496
5325-Collecting - Cash Over and Short 0
5330-Collection Charges 500
5335-Bad Debt Expense 306,000
5340-Miscellaneous Customer Accounts Expenses 522,675
3650-Billing and Collecting Total 2,863,215
3700-Community Relations
5405-Supervision 0
5410-Community Relations - Sundry 152,526
5415-Energy Conservation 0
5420-Community Safety Program 19,051
5425-Miscellaneous Customer Service and Informational Expenses 61,200
3700-Community Relations Total 232,777
3800-Administrative and General Expenses
5605-Executive Salaries and Expenses 729,401
5610-Management Salaries and Expenses 384,158
5615-General Administrative Salaries and Expenses 582,990
5620-Office Supplies and Expenses 80,250
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5625-Administrative Expense Transferred-Credit 0
5630-Outside Services Employed 220,000
5635-Property Insurance 133,133
5640-Injuries and Damages 0
5645-Employee Pensions and Benefits 108,000
5650-Franchise Requirements 59,000
5655-Regulatory Expenses 144,500
5660-General Advertising Expenses 40,000
5665-Miscellaneous Expenses (1,995)
5670-Rent 0
5675-Maintenance of General Plant 0
5680-Electrical Safety Authority Fees 19,000
5681-Special Purpose Charge Expense 0
5685-Independent Market Operator Fees and Penalties 0
5695-OM&A Contra Account 0
3800-Administrative and General Expenses Total 2,498,437
3850-Amortization Expense
5705-Amortization Expense - Property, Plant and Equipment 2,995,584
5710-Amortization of Limited Term Electric Plant 0
5715-Amortization of Intangibles and Other Electric Plant 0
5720-Amortization of Electric Plant Acquisition Adjustments 0
5725-Miscellaneous Amortization 0
5730-Amortization of Unrecovered Plant and Regulatory Study Costs 0
5735-Amortization of Deferred Development Costs 0
5740-Amortization of Deferred Charges 0
3850-Amortization Expense Total 2,995,584
3900-Interest Expense
6005-Interest on Long Term Debt 921,760
6010-Amortization of Debt Discount and Expense 0
6015-Amortization of Premium on Debt-Credit 0
6020-Amortization of Loss on Reacquired Debt 0
6025-Amortization of Gain on Reacquired Debt-Credit 0
6030-Interest on Debt to Associated Companies 1,419,904
6035-Other Interest Expense 135,144
6040-Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction-Credit 0
6042-Allowance for Other Funds Used During Construction 0
6045-Interest Expense on Capital Lease Obligations 0
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| 2,476,808 |

3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes
6105-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes 12,000
3950-Taxes Other Than Income Taxes Total 12,000
4000-Income Taxes
6110-Income Taxes (783,636)
6115-Provision for Future Income Taxes 916,580
4000-Income Taxes Total 132,944
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items
6205-Donations 0
6210-Life Insurance 0
6215-Penalties 0
6225-Other Deductions 0
4100-Extraordinary & Other Items Total 0
Net Income - (Gain)/Loss (644,604)
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RECONCILIATION BETWEEN PRO FORMA STATEMENTS AND REVENUE DEFICIENCY
STATEMENTS

No reconciliation is required between the 2013 Pro Forma financial statements and the revenue deficiency

statement.
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INFORMATION ON AFFILIATES

Brantford Energy Corporation [“BEC”] is the parent company of BPI. It is wholly owned by the
Corporation of the City of Brantford. Copies of BEC's consolidated and non-consolidated 2011 Audited
financial statements accompany this Schedule as Appendix G. A copy of the BEC Annua Report is
attached as Appendix H.

Two other companies, Brantford Hydro Inc. [“BHI”] and Brantford Generation Inc. [“BGI”], are aso
wholly owned by BEC.

BPI purchases various services from its affiliate, the Corporation of the City of Brantford under a Services

Aqgreement.
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Brantford Erjiei‘gy Corporation j energy -

Management Report -
December 31, 2011

The accompanying non-consolidated financial statements are the responstblhty of management of
Brantford Energy Corporation (the Company). In management's opinion, these non-consotidated
financial statements prepared by management, which have not been, and were not intended to be,
prepared in accortlance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles are solely for the
information and use of the board of directors of the Company and the provincial corporate tax
authorities for corporate tax purposes. Management has selected accounting principles and methods
that are appropriate to the Company's circumstances. Financial statements are not precise since they
include certain amounts based on estimates and judgments. Management has determined such
amounts on a reasonable basis in order to ensure that the financial statements are presented fairly, in
all material respects. The notes to the financial statements and any other suppiementary information
presented are consistent with that in the fi nanclal statements. _

The Company maintains systems of mtemal accounting and administrative controls that are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and
accurate, that transactions are properly authorized and that the Company's assets are properly
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

The non-consolidated financial statements have been examined by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the
external auditors of the Company. The responsibility of the external auditors is to express their -
opinion on whether the non-consolidated financial statements are fairly presented, in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis of accountmg described in note 2 to the non-consolidated

ﬁnanclal statements.

The. board of directors, through the finance committee, is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfills its responsibility for financial repotting and internal control. The finance commitiee meets
periodically with management, as well with the external auditors to satisfy itself that each party is 3
properly discharging its responsnbllltles with respect to internal controls ‘and financial reporting. ~
The finance committee also reviews the financial statements and annual report and recommends
theit approval to the board of directors. Deloitte & Touche LLP has full and free access to the
finance committee, with and without the presence of management B

Ted Salisbury Brian D'Amboise, CA

"~ Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
-A_pril 12,2012 April 12,2012
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Deloitie & Touche LLP

: H 1005 Skyview Drive
e OI e. R Suite 200 .
’ S Burlingion ON L7P 5B1
] ’ ’ ’ Canada
. Tel: 905-315-6770

Fax: 905-315-8700
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directofs_ of
Brantford Energy Corporation

We have audited the accomparnying non-consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy
Corporation, which comprise the non-consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2011, and the non-
consolidated statements of retained earnings, operations and comprehensive income and cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

- The financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance with the basis of accounting
described in Note 2 of the non-consolidated financial statements. o

' Management's responsibility for the non-consolidated _ﬁnah_éial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these non-consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the basis of accounting described in Note 2 of the non-consolidated financial
statements, and for such internal contrel as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation
of non-consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or.

erTor. :
Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these non-consolidated financial statements based on our

~ audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethica! requirements and plan and perform theé audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the non-consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the non-consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the non-consolidated financial _
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the non-consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the non-consolidated
financial statements. -

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

tMembre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



_ Opinion

In our opinion the non-consolidated financial statements present falrly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Brantford Energy Corporation as at December 31, 2011 and the results of its
operatmns and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the basis of accountmg descnbed
in Note 2 of the non-consolidated financial statements. S .

Bas1s of accountmg and restriction on distribution and use

Without modlfymg our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describe
the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared to assist Brantford Energy Corporation to
meet the requirements of their shareholder. As a result, the financial statements may not be suitable for
another purpose. Our report is intended solely for the shareholder of Brantford Energy Corporation and
should not be distributed or used by parties other than the shareholder of Brantford Energy Corporation.

Defodte § Toudhs

‘Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
April 12,2012

LLe



Brantford Energy Corporation
Non-Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at December 31, 2011
- Asgsets 2011 2010
' 5
Current Assets _
Cash and cash equivalents 46,149 33,598
Accounts receivable 2,492 4,786
Due from subsidiaries - note 4 67,372 75,786
Prepaid expenses R 1,117 1,117
117,130 - 115,287
Long-Term Prepaid Expenses 3,560 4,677
Investment in Subsidiaries - note 5 23,825,511 23,825,511
23,946,201 23,945,475
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity
Current Liabilities N |
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,704 8,853
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford - note 6 - 39,985 41,110
> S © 50,689 49,963
Contingent Liabilities - note 7
Shareholder's Eq'u.ity - I
Share capital -note 8~ . 23,895,512 23,895,512
23,946,201 23,945,475

Signed on behalf of the Board:

Director =

Director

See accompanying notes Page 4



Brantford Energy Corporation
Non-Consolidated Statement of Retained Earnings
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year - -
Net Income 1,800,000 1,050,000
Dividends (1,800,000) (1,050,000)

Retained Earnings, End of Year -

See accompanying notes Page 5



Brantford Energy Corporation

Non-Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Income

for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Revenue
Dividend income 1,800,000 1,050,000
Management fees - note 6 251,735 206,875
Interest income 2,002 692
Other income - 300
‘ 2,053,737 1,257,867
Expenses
General administration 253,673 207,726
Capital tax 64 141
253,737 207,867
Net Income 1,800,000 1,050,000
Comprehensive Income - -
Net Income and Comprehensive Income 1,800,000 1,050,000
See accompanying notes Page 6



Brantford Energy Corporation
Non-Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities
Net income 1,800,000 1,050,000
Changes in non-cash working capital components - note 9 12,551 (1,346)
1,812,551 1,048,654
Financing activity
Dividends paid (1,800,000} (1,050,000)
(1,800,000) (1,050,000)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,551 (1,346)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 33,598 34,944
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 46,149 33,598
Supplemental disclosure of cash flows
Interest received 2,026 748
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes paid 64 141
See accompanying notes Page 7



Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

1.

Incorporation

On March 1, 2000, Brantford Energy Corporation (the Company) was incorporated under the
Business Corporations Act (Ontario) along with its wholly-owned subsidiary companies,
Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford Power Inc. A third wholly-owned subsidiary company,
Brantford Generation Inc., was incorporated in 2007. The Company is wholly owned by The
Corporation of the City of Brantford. The incorporations were pursuant to the provisions of the
Energy Competition Act, 1998.

The principal business of the Company is to oversee the operations of Brantford Power Inc.,
providing regulated electricity distribution services, Brantford Hydro Inc., providing fibre
optics networks, water heater rental, sentinel lighting and other equipment rental services and
Brantford Generation Inc., providing electricity generation.

Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the significant
accounting policies set out below. These financial statements materially differ from Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) because they are non-consolidated. The
Company's investment in its subsidiary companies have been recorded at cost. Earnings from
the investments are recognized only to the extent dividends are received or receivable. For a
more informative presentation of the financial statements of the Company, reference should be
made to the consolidated financial statements for the same period.

Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes

Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to make payments in lieu of corporate
taxes (PILS) to the Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC), beginning October 1,
2001. These payments are recorded in accordance with the rules for computing income and
taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Jncome Tax Act (Canada) and the
Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) and modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and related regulations.
The Company accounts for PILS using the liability method.

Page 8



Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure and contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. Management made
only one significant estimate related to the annual audit fee accrual. Estimates are based on
historical experience, current trends and various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstance. Actual results could differ from estimates.

Investments

The Company's investments in Brantford Power Inc., Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford
Generation Inc., of which it owns 100% of the outstanding voting shares for all, are recorded at

cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews the valuation of long-term assets when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the assets’ carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows
expected from their use and eventual disposition. There was no impact on the financial
statements as a result of asset impairments for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Page 9



Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Financial Instruments

The Corporation designates its financial instruments in one of the following five categories: (i)
held for trading (HFT); (ii) available for sale (AFS); (iii) held to maturity (HTM); (iv) loans and
receivables (LR); or (v) other liabilities (OL). All financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value. Financial instruments classified as held for trading or available for sale are
subsequently measured at fair value, with any change in fair value recognized in earnings and
other comprehensive income, respectively. All other financial instruments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

The Company has elected to add transaction costs related to financial instruments classified as
other than HFT to the carrying amount of the financial instrument.

The Company has elected to use settlement-date accounting for regular-way purchases and sales
of financial assets,

Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses consist of service fees paid providing the Company with the right
to use non-owned specified tangible assets for future periods, These charges are amortized on a
straight-line basis over 10 years.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recorded in the period to which it relates and collection is reasonably assured.
Dividend income is recorded in the period in which the dividend is declared.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

Future Changes in Accounting Framework

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

“In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly
accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP effective
January 1, 2011. The Company has decided to issue special purpose financial statements for its
year ended December 31, 2011 under Canadian GAAP which will allow for a one year delay in
the adoption of TFRS. This one year delay will coincide with the adoption date for its rate-
regulated affiliate. The revised adoption date of January 1, 2012 will require the restatement,
for comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the Company for its year ended December
31, 2011, and of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2011.

The Company is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of the adoption of IFRS on
its non-consolidated financial statements. At this time, the Company's future financial position
and results of operations are not expected to be significantly impacted. The Company does
anticipate a significant increase in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is
continuing to assess the level of disclosure required.

Due From Subsidiaries

2011 2010
b $
Brantford Power Inc. 23,312 11,123
Brantford Hydro Inc. 7,771 3,721
Brantford Generation Inc. 36,289 60,942
' 67,372 75,786
5. Investment in Subsidiaries
2011 2010
$ $
Brantford Power Inc., 1,001 common shares (100%) 22,437,505 22,437,505
Brantford Hydro Inc., 1,001 common shares (100%) 1,338,006 1,338,006
Brantford Generation Inc., 1,001 common shares (100%) 50,000 50,000
23,825,511 23,825,511
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

6. Related Party Transactions

The Company is a wholly owned by The Corporation of the City of Brantford (the City).
Transactions between the Company, Brantford Power Inc., Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford
Generation Inc. occur in the natural course operations and consideration paid is on similar terms
as those to unrelated parties.

The Company has entered into a shared services agreement with the City, whereby the City will
provide administrative support for the Company. The exchange amount for these services has
been set out in the agreement. Total charges from the City under this shared agreement were
$229,986 (2010 - $193,560).

During the year, Brantford Energy Corporation charged a fee for management services to its
subsidiaries in the following amounts:

2011 2010
) $
Brantford Power Inc. 151,041 124,125
Brantford Hydro Inc, 50,347 41,375
Brantford Generation Inc. 50,347 41,375
251,735 206,875

7. Contingent Liabilities

General Liability Insurance

The Company has obtained general liability and enhanced directors and officers insurance
coverage from the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange ("The
Mearie Group") expiring January I, 2013. The Mearie Group is an insurance reciprocal
whereby all members through the unincorporated group share risks with each other.
Members of the Mearie Group are assessed a premium deposit at policy execution. Should
the group experience losses that are in excess of the accumulated premium deposits of its
members combined with reserves and supplementary insurance, members would be assessed
a supplementaty or retro assessment on a pro-rata basis for the years in which the Company
was a member,

As at December 31, 2011, the Company has not been made aware of any additional
assessments. Participation in The Mearie Group covers a three year underwriting period
which expires on January 1, 2013.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

10.

11.

Share Capital
Authorized
Unlimited number of common shares
2011 2010
$ $
Issued
2001 common shares 23,895,512 23,895,512
Statement of Cash Flows
2011 2010
$ $
Changes in non-cash working capital components
Accounts receivable 2,294 (3,404)
Due from subsidiaries 8,414 4,621
Prepaid expenses 1,117 1,117
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,851 (16,664)
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford (1,125) 12,984
12,551 (1,346)

Capital Disclosures

The Company's objectives with respect to its capital structure is to retain 100% equity
capitalization and to deliver the appropriate returns achieved from its subsidiaries.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management

All financial instruments are initially recorded on the balance sheet at fair value except for
certain related party transactions. They are subsequently vatued either at fair value or amortized
cost depending on the classification selected by the Company for the financial instrument. All
financial instruments are classified into one of the five categories: held-for-trading, loans and
receivables, other liabilities, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets

Held-for-trading (HFT) financial instruments are financial assets and financial liabilities
typically acquired with the objective of resale or short-term buyback. The carrying amount is
recorded at fair value determined using market prices. Interest earned and gains and losses
incurred are recognized in net income. Cash and cash equivalents are designated as financial
assets held for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes being recorded in net
income at each period end.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

11. Financial Instrument and Risk Management - continued

Loans and receivables (LR) are non-derivative financial assets resulting from the delivery of
cash or other assets by a lender to a borrower in return for a promise to repay on a specified
date, or on demand, usually with interest. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost. Accounts receivables and due from subsidiaties are classified as loans and receivables and
are measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost,

Other liabilities (OL) are promises to repay on specified dates or on demand usually with
interest. Accounts payable and accounts payable to the City of Brantford classified as other
liabilities and are measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature,
approximates amortized cost.

Held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets have fixed or determinable payments and maturity,
and management’s intention and ability are to hold to maturity. These financial assets are
measured at amortized cost. The Company does not hold any financial assets under this
classification.

Available-for-sale (AFS) instruments are non-derivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or held-for-trading financial assets. Available-for-sale instruments are measured at
fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in OCI. The Company does not hold any
financial assets under this classification.

The Company, through its financial assets and liabilities has exposure to liquidity risk from its
use of financial instruments. The following analysis provides a measurement as at December
31, 2011:

Liquidity Risk
The Company's objective is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The

Company monitors its cash balances and cashflows generated from operations to meet its
requirements,

Fair Values
a) Establishing fair value

The fair values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, due from subsidiaries,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, and accounts payable to the City of Brantford
approximate their carrying values due to the relatively short periods to maturity of the
instruments.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Non-Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

11. Financial Instrument and Risk Management - continued

b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet are classified using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniques based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices);

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservabie inputs).

The fair value hicrarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs
exist. A financial instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a
significant input has been considered in measuring fair value.

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the Balance
Sheet, classified using the fair value hierarchy described above:

Total financial

assets and
liabilities at fair
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value
$ $ $ $
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 46,149 - - 46,149
Total financial assets 46,149 - - 46,149

During the year, there has been no transfer of amounts between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
financial assets or liabilities have been identified as Level 3.
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| BRANTYTFORD - : -
Brantford Energy Corporation j Enei gy

Management Report
December 31, 2011

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of management of
Brantford Energy. Corporation (the Company) In management's opinion, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting
principles. Management has selected accounting principies and methods that are appropriate to the
Company's circumstances. Financial statements are not precise since they include certain amounts
based on estimates and judgments. Management has determined such amounts on a teasonable
basis in order to ensure that the consolidated financial statements are presented fairly, in all material
tespects, The notes to the consolidated financial statements and any other supplementary
information presented are consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company maintains systems of internal accounting and administrative controls that are
designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial information is relevant, reliable and
accurate, that transactions are properly authorized and that the Company's assets are propelly
accounted for and adequately safeguarded .

Thc consolidated financial statemeﬂ'ts have been examined by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the external
auditors of the Company. The rtesponsibility of the external auditors is to express their opinion on
whether the consolidated financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects, in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles. :

The board of directors, through the finance committee, is responsible for ensuring that management
fulfills its responsibility for financial reporting and internal control. The finance committee meets
periodically with management, as well with the external auditors to satisfy itself that each party is
properly discharging its 1esp0nsnblllt1es with respect to internal controls. and financial reporting.
The. finance committee also reviews the consolidated financial statements and annual repott and
recommends their approval to the board of directors. Deloitte & Touche LLP. has full and free
access to the finance committee, with and without the presence of management.

B

Ted Salisbury x Brian D'Amboise, CA
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officer
April 12,2012 : April 12,2012
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Suite 200
Burlington ON L7P 5B1
Canada

- S
De Io. tte . Deloitte & Touche LLP
X ) ) 1005 Skyview Drive

Tel: 805-315-6770
Fax: 905-315-8700
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors of
Brantford Energy Corporation

We-have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Brantford Energy Corporation.
which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2011 and the consolidated statements
of operations, retained earnings, comprehensive income and cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. '

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance abouit whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstaterment.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control o
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion. g

Membre de / Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Brantford Energy Corporation as at December 31, 2011 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

g
Dottt § Towde L
Chartered Accountants o

Licensed Public Accountants
April 12, 2012



Brantford Energy Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at December 31, 2011
Assets - 2011 2010
$ $
Current Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents 11,277,852 12,792,478
Accounts receivable 7,486,017 8,619,834
Unbilled revenue 8,690,152 9,048,214
Inventories 720,936 821,647
Special deposits 1,155,522 1,056,193
Prepaid expenses o 128,279 165,648
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes 1,315,922 . 302,590
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 22 182,438 273,845
30,957,118 33,080,449
Property, plant and equipment - note 5 74,905,342 73,214,556
Other Assets
‘Regulatory assets - note 8 4,147,328 5,046,561
Long-term special deposits 918,090 1,452,327
Long-term prepaid expenses 206,458 143,006
Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes - note 22 2,516,492 3,367,469
Intangible assets - note 6 3,479,311 4,547,613
11,267,679 14,556,976
117,130,139 120,851,981
Page 4

See accompanying notes



‘Brantford Energy Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheet

as at December 31, 2011
Liabilities and Shareholder's Equity 2011 2010
L $ $
. Current Liabilities o
- Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,117,760 11,153,551
- Accounts payable to the City of Brantford - note 7 2,187,578 2,166,639 . .
Interest payable to the City of Brantford - note 9 1,509,022 1,593,281
Current portion of customer deposits 1,159,272 1,059,943
Current portion of deferred revenue _ "~ 8,925 7,716
Current portion of long-term debt - note 9 598,986 1,250,304
: 15,581,543 17,231,434
LOn'g-term debt - note 9 _ 55,174,469 54,435,718
* Other Liabilities -
- 'Regulatory liabilities - note 8 7,329,824 11,009,791
- Long-term customer deposits 952,860 1,485,663
Employee future benefits - note 10 976,579 893,739
Deferred revenues 147,446 72,536
Derivative liabilities - note 21 713,683 525,435
: 10,120,392 13,987,164
Contingencies and Commitments - note 11 and 12
Shareholder's thity o
. Share capital - note 14 23,895,512 23,895,512
Retained Earnings N _ 12,876,502 11,676,811
. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss - note 15 (518,279) _(374,658)
R 36,253,735 35,197,665
117,130,139 120,851,981
Signéd d'n'_behalf of the Board:
Director.
Director
| o See accompanying notes Page 5



Brantford Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Retained Earnings

for the vear ended December 31, 2011

2011 2010
$ $
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year 11,676,811 10,511,293
Net Income 2,999,691 2,215,518
" Dividends (1,800,000) (1,050,000)
Retained Earnings, End of Year ' 12,876,502 11,676,811
See accompanying notes .Page 6



iBrantford Energy Corporatlon
Consolidated Statement of Operations
for the year ended De_c_ember 31,2011

2011

2011 2010
$ $

Revenue - _

- Electricity distribution service charges - note 17 - 15,158,434 . 15,293,962
Fibre optics and retail service revenue - 2,517,636 - 2,416,539
Generation revenue 1,641,833 .. 243,060
Interest income . ..299,773 . 140,223
Specific service charges - 469,500 . 635,867
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs S 723,014 1,130,495
Other income - - 290,956 - 248,246

~. 21,101,146 20,108,392

Expenses - o
Operations and maintenance - 4,292,845 4,082,487
Billing and collecting 1,975,469 2,068,957
General administration _ 2,734,507 2,829,701
Ontario Power Authority conservation programs 735,093 926,976
Interest on long-term debt 2,440,713 2,176,516
Other financing expenses 195,748 89,606
Capital tax (1,756) 33,853
Amortization - note 19 4,802,671 4,031,289

17,175,290 16,239,385

Income béfore payments in lieu of income taxes 3,925,856 3,869,007

Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes g
Current - note 22 (106,516) 1,307,796
Future - note 22 1,032,681 345,693

L 926,165 1,653,489 .

Net income 2,999,691 2,215,518

See accompanying notes’
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2011 . 2010

$ $
Net income - o 2,999,601 2215518
. Other comprehensive loss
Unrealized losses on derivative instruments- des1gnated as .
cash flow hedges Note 21 (191,491) (42,910)
. Future recoveries in lieu of corporate income taxes 47,870 10,730
B ' (143,621) (32,180)
Comprehensive income . 2,856,070 2,183,338

See accompanying 'ri_ofes By : Page 8



Brantford Energy Corporation
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended December 31, 2011

See accompanying notes

2011 2010
$ $
Operating activities o
Net income 2,999,691 - 2,215,518
Items not affecting cash S
. Amortization - note 19 . 5,074,087 4,297,529
~Future payments in lieu of corporate income taxes = . 1,032,681 345,693
-"Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (19,025) - (51,067)
Other items not affecting cash 78,162 328,941
' Workmg capital provided by operations : 9,165,596 7,136,614
Changes in non-cash workmg capital components - note 18 (482,484) (862,234)
8,683,112 6,274,380
Investmg activities o
- Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (5,991,733) (7,640,665)
- Decrease (increase) in regulatory assets 899,233 (1,446,754)
Decrease in regulatory liabilities (3,679,967) (79,270)
Decrease in special deposits 434,908 70,305
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment : 19,025 89,488
o - (8,318,534) (9,006,896)
Fmancmg activities :
Proceeds of issuance of long-term debt 550,000 8,714,999
. Capital contributions 295,163 225,825
Repayment of long-term debt (567,012) (499,546)
 Decrease in customer deposits (433,474) (79,164)
~Increase in deferred revenues - 76,119 8,349
" Dividends paid - . (1,8060,000) (1,050,000)
L - (1,879,204) 7,320,463
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents -+ (1,514,626) 4,587,947
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year - 12,792,478 8.204,531
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 11,277,852 12,792,478
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flows AR
Interest received 180,215 - 83,617
Interest paid 2,384,709 2,101,886
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes paid 1,462,456 - - 1,904,895
Page 9



Brantford Energy Corporatlon
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

for the ;year ended December 31, 2011

1.

Descr:ptlon of Business

O March 1, 2000, Brantford Energy Corporation. (the Company) was 1nc0rporated under the

Business Corporations Act (Ontario) along with its wholly-owned subsidiary companies,
Brantford Power Inc. and Brantford Hydro Inc. A third wholly-owned subsidiary company,

_Brantford Generation Inc., was incorporated in 2007. The incorporations. were pursuant to the
- provisions of the Energy Competition Act, 1998 The Company is a wholly-owned by The
Corporation of the City of Brantford.

The principal business of the Company is to oversee the operations of Brantford Power Inc.,

providing regulated electricity distribution services, Brantford Hydro Inc., prov1d1ng fibre

optics networks, water heater, sentinel lighting and other equipment rental services -and
Brantford Generation Iic., providing electricity generatlon :

- Brantford Generation Ine is currently developing the Mohawk Street landfill gas collectlon and
- utilization facilities (LFG facilities) which began electricity generation during 2010

-Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Canadian

- generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and policies set forth in-the Accounting

Procedures Manual issued by the Ontario Energy Board under the authority of the Ontario
Energy Board Act, 1998. Significant accounting policies are summarized below:

- Basis of consolidation

" These consolidated financial statements reﬂect the results of Branford Energy Corporatlon and

its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances ‘and transactions have been eliminated.
The notes to these financial statements are disclosures and policies adopted by Braniford

..-_'Ener'gy Corporation and, if applicable, the specific subsidiary referenced in the note.

Page 10



Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. During the years
presented, management has made a number of estimates and valuation assumptions including
allowance for doubtful accounts receivable, unbilled revenue, useful lives, certain accruals,
valuation of financial instruments including derivatives and future income tax liabilities.
Estimates are based on historical experience, current trends and various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ from
estimates, including changes as a result of future decisions made by the Ontario Energy Board
(the OEB) or the Minister of Energy.

Regulatory policies

Brantford Power Inc. is regulated by the OEB and requires OEB approval for any distribution
service rates adjustments. The following accounting policies applicable to rate regulated
operations differ from GAAP for companies in an unregulated environment:

Regulatory assets and liabilities

Regulatory assets primarily represent costs that have been deferred because they are
expected to be recovered in future rates. Similarly, regulatory liabilities can arise from
differences in amounts billed to customers under the regulated pricing mechanism and the
corresponding wholesale market cost of power incurred by the utility.

Regulatory assets and liabilities will be recognized for rate-setting and financial statement
purposes only to the extent allowed by the regulator. Brantford Power Inc. continually
assesses the likelihood of recovery of each of its regulatory assets and continues to believe
that it is probable that the OEB will factor its regulatory assets and liabilities into the setting
of future rates. If, at some future date, Brantford Power Inc. judges that it is no longer
probable that the OEB will include a regulatory asset or liability in future rates, the
appropriate carrying amount will be reflected in the results of operations in the period that
the assessment is made. Asset and liability balances and current year activities are detailed
in Note 8.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Contributions in aid of construction

Contributions in aid of construction consist of third party contributions towards the cost of
constructing Brantford Power Inc. assets. Capital contributions for the year of $265,560
(2010 - $196,588) have been charged as an offset to capital assets. Amortization of
contributed capital is recorded at an equivalent rate to that used for amortization of the

related assets.

Allowance for use of funds during construction

Brantford Power Inc. capitalizes an allowance for use of funds during construction
representing the cost of funds during the construction period. The rate used is prescribed by
the OEB and updated on a quarterly basis. The total allowance for use of funds during
construction capitalized for the year amounted to $56,469 (2010 - $63,402).

Stranded meters

As a result of the OEB's smart meter initiative, Brantford Power Inc. has removed
conventional meters and replace them with smart meters. The net book value of the
conventional meters removed from service prior to the end of their useful life has been
classified as stranded meters and reallocated from property, plant and equipment to
intangible assets. The OEB will allow Brantford Power Inc. to recover the costs of these
stranded meters through a future rate application process.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with maturities of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.

Inventories

Inventories consist of repair parts, supplies and materials and are valued at the lower of cost or
net realizable value determined using a weighted average method. The Company classifies
major construction related components of its electricity distribution system and equipment
rental business to property, plant and equipment.

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue for metered services consists of an estimate of customers' consumption of
services from the last meter reading during the year to the balance sheet date. Unbilled
revenues for other services is an estimate of service fees from the last billing cycle during the
year to the balance sheet date.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and removed from the accounts when disposed
or retired. Costs of assets which are pooled are removed from the accounts at the end of their
estimated average service lives. Gains or losses at retirement or disposition of such assets are
credited or charged to other income. Amortization is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful service life as follows.

Distribution buildings 50 years
Transformer station 40 years
Distribution stations 30 years
Distribution lines ~ overhead 25 years
Distribution lines - underground 25 years
Distribution transformers 25 years
Distribution meters 25 years
Vehicles 5-8 years
Tools and other equipment 5-10 years
Fibre optics network 25 years
Fibre optics electronics 3-5 years
Water heaters and other rental units - 10 years
Generation plant and equipment 20 years
Landfill gas collection system 20 years
Generation building and fixtures 10-20 years
Capital contribution : 25 years

Other electric plant and work in progress are amortized when put in service.

Page 13



Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are recorded at cost and amortized over their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis. Stranded meters represent distribution meters that have been replaced with
smart meters and reallocated from property, plant and equipment. The OEB has allowed these
retired meters to remain in rate base for rate making purposes. Amortization is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful service life as follows.

Stranded meters 25 years
Software 5 years
Long-term prepaid expenses and special deposits

Long-term prepaid expenses consist of service fees paid providing the Company with the right
to use non-owned specified tangible assets for future periods. These charges are amortized on a
straight-line basis over 10 years representing the expected benefit period. Long-term prepaid
expenses also include current expenditures that relate to future major overhaul procedures that
occur when the generating engines reach a designated level of operating hours. These charges
will be capitalized when the overhaul is performed and amortized on a straight-line basis over
the expected time between overhauls.

Amounts are recorded as special deposits when cash is collected related to customer deposits
and are expected to be held for a period exceeding one year.

Impairment of long-lived assets

The Company reviews the valuation of long-term assets when events or changes in
citcumstances indicate that the assets’ carrying value exceeds the total undiscounted cash flows
expected from their use and eventual disposition. There was no impact on the financial
statements as a result of asset impairrents for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Revenue recognition

Distribution and generation revenue is recorded as revenue in the period to which it relates.
Distribution revenue includes an estimated accrual for the variable component of the
distribution rate based on the electricity delivered but not yet billed to customers from the last
meter reading date to the year end. Installation revenue related to fibre optics is capitalized and
amortized on a straight line basis over the life of the related capital assets. Any revenues
related to the irrevocable right to use fibre optics, are deferred and amortized on a straight line
basis over the term of the contract.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Customer deposits

Customer deposits are cash collections from customers to guarantee the payment of billings.
Deposits expected to be refunded to customers within the next fiscal period are classified as a

current liability.

Employee future benefits

The Company provides post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits to eligible
employees. The cost of post-retirement medical and life insurance benefits is expensed using
the projected benefit cost method prorated on services.

The Company has adopted the corridor method of accounting for the actuarially determined
gains and losses. Cumulative gains and losses in excess of 10% of the beginning accrued
benefit obligation are amortized into expense on a straight-line basis over the expected
remaining lifetime of the inactive members receiving benefits under the plan (15 years).

Asset retirement obligations

The Company recognizes the liability for an asset retirement that results from acquisition,
construction, development or normal operations. The liability for an asset retirement is initially
recorded at its fair value in the year in which it is incurred and when a reasonable estimate of
fair value can be made. The corresponding cost is capitalized as part of the related asset and is
amortized over the asset's useful life. In subsequent years, the liability is adjusted for changes
resulting from the passage of time and revisions to either the timing or the amount of the
original estimate of the undiscounted cash flows. The accretion of the liability to its fair value
as a result of the passage of time is charged to earnings.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

2. Accounting Policies - continued

Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes and capital taxes

The Company is cutrently exempt from taxes under the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the
Ontario Corporations Tax Act. Under the Electricity Act, 1998, the Company is required to
make payments in lieu of corporate taxes to Ontario Electricity Financial Corporation (OEFC),
beginning October 1, 2001. These payments are calculated in accordance with the rules for
computing income and taxable capital and other relevant amounts contained in the Income Tax
Act (Canada) and the Taxation Act, 2007 (Ontario) as modified by the Electricity Act, 1998, and
related regulations.

The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for payments in lieu of
corporate income taxes. Accordingly, future tax assets and liabilities are recognized for future
tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax rates. Future tax assets and liabilities
are measured using enacted or substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the year in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.
In addition, the effect of future tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in
income in the year that includes the enactment or substantive enactment date,

Comprehensive Income

CICA Handbook Section 1530 requires the presentation of comprehensive income and its
components in a financial statement. Comprehensive income is composed of the Company’s net
income and other comprehensive income (OCI), which includes unrealized gains and losses on
changes in the fair value of the effective portion of cash flow hedging instruments. The
Company discloses comprehensive income in the financial statement “Statement of
Comprehensive Income”. The cumulative changes in OCI are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) (AOCI), which is presented as a category of Sharcholder's equity
on the Company’s Balance Sheet,
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2. Accounting Policies - continued

Financial Instruments

The Corporation designates its financial instruments in one of the following five categories: (i)
held for trading (HFT); (ii) available for sale (AFS); (iii) held to maturity (HH'TM); (iv) loans and
receivables (LR); or (v) other liabilities (OL). All financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value. Financial instruments classified as held for trading or available for sale are
subsequently measured at fair value, with any change in fair value recognized in earnings and
other comprehensive income, respectively. All other financial instruments are subsequently
measured at amortized cost.

The Company has elected to add transaction costs related to financial instruments classified as
other than HFT to the carrving amount of the financial instrument.

The Company has elected to use settlement-date accounting for regular-way purchases and sales
of financial assets.

3. Future Changes in Accounting Framework

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

In February 2008, the Canadian Accounting Standards Board (AcSB) confirmed that publicly
accountable enterprises would be required to adopt IFRS in place of Canadian GAAP effective
January 1, 2011, Subsequently, in September 2010, the AcSB issued an optional one year
deferral in adoption of IFRS for rate-regulated entities. The Company qualifies for this deferral
and has elected to defer adoption until January 1, 2012. The adoption date of January 1, 2012
will require the restatement, for comparative purposes, of amounts reported by the Company for
its year ended December 31, 2011, and of the opening balance sheet as at January 1, 2011.

The Company is continuing to assess the financial reporting impacts of the adoption of [FRS on
its financial statements. The Company does anticipate significant changes to those accounting
policies which are unique to rate regulated entities under Canadian GAAP. In particular, the
adoption of JFRS is expected to result in significant changes to the accounting of regulatory
assets and liabilities and to the capitalization and other accounting policies applicable to self
constructed property, plant and equipment. The Company also anticipates a significant increase
in disclosure resulting from the adoption of IFRS and is continuing to assess the level of
disclosure required. At this time, the impact on the Company's future financial position and
results of operations is not reasonably determinable or estimable.
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Brantford Energy Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2011

4. Rate Setting

The rates of the Company's electricity distribution business are subject to regulation by the
OEB. The Company purchases electricity from the Independent Electricity System Operator
(the IESO) at spot market or prescribed rates and charges its customers unbundled rates. The
unbundled rates include the actual cost or prescribed cost of the electricity, transmission,
wholesale market service charges and an approved rate for electricity distribution. The cost of
electricity transmission and connection charges and debt retirement charges are collected by
Brantford Power Inc. and remitted to the TESO and the Ontario Electricity Financial
Corporation (the OEFC) respectively. The Company retains the distribution charges reflected
on the customer billings. The distribution charges also incorporate, where applicable, OEB
approved rate adders or riders that are necessary to dispose of regulatory assets and liabilities.

The OEB has the general power to include or exclude costs, revenues, losses or gains in the
distribution rates of a specific period, resulting in a change in the timing of accounting
recognition from that which would have applied in an unregulated company. Such change in
timing gives rise to the recognition of regulatory assets and liabilities. The Company's
regulatory assets represent certain amounts receivable from customers in the future and costs
that have been deferred for accounting purposes because it is probable that they will be
recovered in future rates. In addition, the Company has recorded regulatory liabilities which
represent amounts of expenses incurred in different periods than would be the case had the
company been unregulated.

Specific regulatory assets and liabilities are disclosed in note 8.

In the absence of rate regulation, distribution revenue would have been lower by $3,367,713
(2010 - $1,707,866), cost of power would have been lower by $985,278 (2010 - $3,753,601),
other income would have been lower by $14,601 (2010 - $16,144), distribution operations and
maintenance would have been higher by $51,216 (2010 - lower by $46,971), general
administration would have been higher by $57,877 (2010 - $68,032), amortization would have
been higher by $315,364 (2010 - $373,781), and interest income would have been higher by
$48,937 (2010 - $43,600). The net effect, in the absence of rate regulation, is a pre-tax decrease
in net income for 2011 of $2,772,556 (2010 - increase of $1,678,349).

The Company administers several programs through the Ontario Power Authority (OPA)
conservation project. The revenues and expenses related to these programs are not subject to
the regulation of the OEB.

On October 21, 2009 the Company filed an application for 2010 rates on the basis of the OEB's
third generation Incentive Regulation Mechanism (IRM) policy which incorporates an OEB-
approved formula that considers inflation and efficiency targets. On April 12, 2010, the OEB
released its decision. This decision included the repayment of $7,650,132 in regulatory
liabilities over a two year period. The revised rates were approved with an effective date of
May 1, 2010.
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4. Rate Setting - continued

On October 29, 2010 the Company filed an application for 2011 rates also on the basis of the
OEB's third generation IRM policy. On March 28, 2011, the OEB released its decision. This
decision included the repayment of $1,192,282 in regulatory liabilities. The revised rates were
approved with an effective date of May 1, 2011.

On November 10, 2011 the Company filed an application for 2012 rates also on the basis of the
OEB's third generation IRM policy. This application has proposed the repayment of
$5,841,761 in regulatory liabilities. Included in this total is $2,021,450 in PILs that resuited
from the OEB PILs proceeding concluded during 2011. The PILs amount was previously not
reflected in the regulatory liabilities total and will reduce distribution revenue as it is returned to
the customers. These rates would be effective May 1, 2012. The OEB has not released its

decision regarding the application.

Property, Plant and Equipment

2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ $ $

Land 181,961 - 181,961 181,961
Distribution buildings 1,163,732 171,258 992,474 1,015,748
Transformer station 4,507,912 780,833 3,727,079 3,801,417
Distribution stations 74,427 27,544 46,883 49.364
Distribution lines - overhead 28,522,309 9,630,502 18,891,807 18,624,257
Distribution lines - underground 32,009,172 9,026,027 22,983,145 22,225,393
Distribution transformers 17,352,178 5,670,172 11,682,006 11,830,709
Distribution meters 3,988,195 1,014,467 2,973,728 1,984,840
Vehicles 3,033,111 2,142,108 891,003 852,652
Tools and other equipment 800,611 209,499 591,112 640,041
Other utility plant 54,756 - 54,756 51,816
Fibre optics 2,859,166 1,042,448 1,816,718 1,756,224
Water heater rental units 1,805,142 940,726 864,416 770,732
Generation plant and equipment 8,844,257 660,287 8,183,970 8,579,382
Landfill gas collection system 3,556,523 239,161 3,317,362 2,929,850
Generation building & fixtures 1,214,847 89,404 1,125,443 1,151,150
Office furniture and fixtures 41,710 5,307 36,403 29,244
Accumulated capital contribution (4,288,736) (778,349) (3,510,387)  (3,386,785)
Work in progress - generation 31,455 - 31,455 22,454
Work in progress - other 24,008 - 24,008 104,107

105,776,736 30,871,394 74,905,342 73,214,556
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6.

Intangible Assets
2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book
Cost Amortization Value Value
$ $ S $
Land rights and easements 5,968 - 5,968 5,968
Stranded meters 5,269,572 2,032,381 3,237,191 4,457,373
Software 435,330 199,178 236,152 84,272

5,710,870 2,231,559 3,479,311 4,547,613

Related Party Transactions

The Company is a wholly owned by The Corporation of the City of Brantford (the City).
Transactions between the Company, Brantford Power Inc., Brantford Hydro Inc. and Brantford
Generation Inc. occur in the natural course of operations and consideration paid is on similar
terms as those to unrelated parties.

The Company has entered into a shared services agreement with the City, whereby the City will
provide administrative support, customer care, maintenance and operational services for the
Company. The exchange amount for these services has been set out in the agreement. Total
charges from the City under this shared agreement were $8,822,771 (2010 - $9,372,852). Asat
December 31, 2011 the balance owing to the City for these services was $2,187,578 (2010 -
$2,166,639)

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company provided electricity to the City in the
amount of $5,109,891 (2010 - $5,113,692). The Company also provided other services to the
City including street light maintenance in the amount of $138,410 (2010 - $273,143) and fibre
optic services in the amount of $185,749 (2010 - $195,568).

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company paid property tax to the City in the
amount of $16,868 (2010 - $18,887)
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8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Based on existing regulatory orders or the expectation of future regulatory orders, the Company
has recorded the following amounts, net of income tax and amortization where applicable,
which are expected to be recovered from or refunded to customers:

2011 2010
$ $

Regulatory Assets
Retail Market Settlement

Retail settlement variance account - Global Adjustment - 527,990

Retailer cost variance accounts 339,637 320,955
Cther _

Smart meters 3,048,342 3,520,157

Distribution revenue rate change 527,214 388,432

Special purpose charge 19,478 136,836

Other regulatory asseis 212,657 152,191
Net regulatory assets 4,147,328 5,046,561
Regulatory liabilities
Retail Market Settlement

Retail settlement variance accounts 4,265,592 5,117,572

Retail settlement variance account - Global Adjustment 203,504 -
Other

Regulatory future income tax liability 509,205 466,778
Regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate

riders 2,349,523 5,425,441
Net regulatory liabilities 7,329,824 11,009,791

Retail settlement variance accounts

The retail settlement variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to
customers using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the
actual costs billed to Brantford Power Inc. by the IESO.

Retail cost variance accounts

The retailer cost variance accounts represent differences between charges billed to retailers
using the prescribed prices as outlined in the OEB's Retail Settlement Code and the actual costs
paid by Brantford Power Inc. to operate and maintain the systems related to the retail market.
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8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - continued

Smart meters

On April 12, 2006, the OEB approved the establishment of regulatory deferral accounts for
smart meter-related expenditures and approved a monthly rate adder charge of $0.28 per
metered customer for the Company. Effective May 1, 2009, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $1.00 per metered customer. Effective May 1, 2010, the OEB increased the monthly
adder to $2.07 per metered customer. Effective May 1, 2011, the OEB maintained the monthly
adder at $2.07 per metered customer. In its 2012 application to the OEB, the Company has
requested the monthly adder be removed.

The Company has recorded a regulatory asset consisting of the net balance of capital and
operating expenditures for smart meters, less recoveries received from the rate adder. These
expenditures and recoveries will continue to be reported as regulatory assets or liabilities until
the Company applies to the OEB to redistribute the amounts to capital or operations.

Distribution revenue rate change

On February 25, 2009, Brant County Power Inc. (BCPI) filed a motion with the OEB to review
and vary the Company's 2008 Electricity Distribution Rates. BCPI disputed the rates they were
being charged as well as the date that the Company could bill retroactively. The OEB released
it decision and order related to this motion on August 10, 2010. The decision allowed the -
Company to record a regulatory asset consisting of the revenue deficiency between the rates
that were approved during the 2008 cost of service application for the Company's embedded
distributor and the rates that were approved as a result of the BCPI motion,

Special purpose charge

On April 9, 2010, the OEB informed clectricity distributors of a Special Purpose Charge (SPC)
assessment under Section 26.1 of the OEB Act, for the Ministry of Energy and Infrastructure
conservation and renewable energy program costs. The OEB assessed the Company the amount
of $376,534 for its apportioned share of the total provincial amount of the SPC of $53,695,000
in accordance with the rules set out in Ontario Regulation 66/10 (the SPC Regulation). In
accordance with Section 9 of the SPC Regulation, the Company was allowed to recover this
balance. The recovery was completed as at April 30, 2011. As at December 31, 2011, the
balance in the account consists of the Company’s assessment less the recoveries received from
customers. '
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8. Regulatory Assets and Liabilities - continued

Regulatory future income tax liability

The Company has recorded a regulatory liability account that relates to the expected future
electricity distribution rate reduction for customers arising from timing differences in the
recognition of future tax assets.

Regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rafe riders

The regulatory liabilities refundable through approved rate riders consists of balances of
regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities approved for disposition by the OEB through rate
riders. The amount is subject to carrying charges following the OEB prescribed methodology

and related rates.

Long-Term Debt

2011 2010
$ $

Notes payable, bearing interest at 5.87%, repayable to the

City, interest only payable annually - due February, 2016 24,189,168 24,189,168
Notes payable, bearing interest at 6.25%, repayable to the

City, interest only payable annually - due February, 2016 1,303,335 1,303,335
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at

prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due January

2013 4,361,278 4,715,635
Royal Bank, non-revolving term facility with interest at

prime repayable in quarterly instalments, due November

2016 683,657 798,292
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation non-

revolving term facility with interest 5.14% repayable in

semi annual instalments due December 2032 2,212,664 2,268,400
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation non-

revolving term facility with interest 4.95% repayable in

semi annual instalments due December 2050 4,769,966 4,808,821
Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corporation construction

advances with interest at 1.75% (2010 - 1.54%) 18,253,387 17,602,371

55,773,455 55,686,022
Less current portion 598,986 1,250,304
55,174,469 54,435,718
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9. Long-Term Debt - continued

The City has an option to extend the maturity date of the promissory notes for successive five
year periods. The City also has the option to convert the principal sums outstanding into
common shares of the Company at a conversion ratio of $ 100 per common share. Interest
payable to the City of $1,509,022 (2010 - $1,593,281) was outstanding as at December 31,
2011,

The Company entered into a swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge against
exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The first agreement represents a notional principal
amount of § 5,900,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay
interest at a fixed rate of 4.71% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly,

The Company entered into a second swap agreement during 2006 with Royal Bank to hedge
against exposure to interest rate fluctuations. The agreement represents a notional principal
amount of § 1,200,000. Under the terms of the agreement, the company has contracted to pay
interest at a fixed rate of 4.97% while receiving a variable rate equivalent to the one month
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate to be repriced quarterly.

The Company entered into a financing agreement with the Ontario Infrastructure and Lands
Corporation (OILC) to advance funds for the construction of the LFG facilities. The financing
agreement for the LFG facilities has approved funds up to $14,000,000 including accrued
interest. Interest was being accrued monthly at rates set monthly by the OILC. Effective June
1, 2011, the Company is required to pay interest expense as it is incurred. As at December 31,
2011, advances of $12,637,659 (2010 - $12,637,659) have been received and interest has been
accrued in the amount of $314,024 (2010 - $214,348). Upon completion on construction, the
term of the loan is expected to be 20 years,

The Company also entered into a financing agreement with the Ontario Infrastructure and
Lands Corporation (OILC) to advance funds for the installation of smart meters. The financing
agreement for smart meter installation has approved funds up to $5,538,000 excluding interest.
Interest is being paid monthly at rates set monthly by the OILC. As at December 31, 2011,
advances of $5,301,704 (2010 - $4,750,364) have been received. Upon completion on
installation, the term of the loan will be 15 years.

These credit facilities are secured by general sccutity agreement over all assets of the Company
and an assignment of related fire insurance.
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9, Long-Term Debt - continued

Estimated principal repayment requirements are as follows:

$
2012 ' 598,986
2013 4,230,214
2014 249,710
2015 263,489
2016 24,466,732
Thereafter 25,964,324

10. Employee Future Benefits

The Company acquired various life insurance, health care related and dental coverage plan
liabilities for certain retired employees of the former Hydro-Electric Commission of the City of
Brantford. Travel, dental, vision and semi-private health care coverage is continued until the
retiree reaches 65 years of age. Life insurance and extended health care coverage is continued
until the retiree's death. The Company also provides similar employee benefits to an active
employee.

The Company measures the accrued benefit obligation for accounting purposes as of December
31 of each year. The accrued benefit obligation as at December 31, 2011 and the expense for
the period ended December 31, 2011 are based on an actuarial valuation done as at January 1,
2008.

The obligation is unfunded since no assets have been segregated and restricted to provide the
post-retirement benefits.
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10. Employee Future Benefits - continued

Significant Assumptions

The key weighted-average assumptions used by the Company for the measurement of the
benefit obligation and benefit expense are summarized as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
To determine benefit obligation at end of year
Discount rate 3.25% 4.50%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
To determine benefit expense (income) for the year -
Discount rate 4.5% 5.0%
Assumed long-term rate of return on assets N/A N/A
Rate of increase in future compensation N/A N/A
Health care cost trend rates at end of year
Initial rate 6.45% 7.30%
Ultimate rate 4.75% 4.75%
Year ultimate rate reached 2013 2013
Sensitivity Analysis _ Change in Change in
: Obligation Expense
$ $
Impact of 1% increase in assumed health care trend rate 119,000 13,000
Impact of 1% decrease in assumed health care trend rate (103,000) (11,000)
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10. Employee Future Benefits - continued

2011 2010
) $

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year 1,810,444 1,713,447
Interest cost on benefit obligation 80,151 85,054
Benefits paid (58,616) (24,737)
Actuarial (gain) loss on accrued benefit obligation (68,747) 36,680
Benefit obligation at end of year 1,763,232 1,810,444
Change in fair value of assets
Fair value of assets at beginning of year - -
Employer contributions 58,616 24,737
Benefits paid (58,616) (24,737)
Fair value of assets at end of year - -
Reconciliation of funded status to accrued benefit

liability :
Deficit of fair value of assets over benefit obligation at end

of year 1,763,232 1,810,444
Unamottized actuarial loss (786,653) (916,705)
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 976,579 893,739
Reconciliation of accrued benefit lLiability
Accrued benefit liability at beginning of year 893,739 774,365
Benefit expense recognized 141,456 144,111
Benefits paid (58,616) (24,737)
Accrued benefit liability at end of year 976,579 893,739
Annual benefit expense
Interest cost on benefit obligation 80,151 85,054
Actuarial loss 61,305 59,057
Benefit expense recognized 141,456 144,111
Cash payments
Benefit premiums paid 91,633 86,464
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11.

12,

Contingencies and Commitments

General Liability Insurance

The Company has obtained general liability and enhanced directors and officers insurance
coverage from the Municipal Electric Association Reciprocal Insurance Exchange (The Mearie
Group) expiring January 1, 2013. The Mearic Group is an insurance reciprocal whereby all
members through the unincorporated group share risks with each other. Members of the Mearie
Group are assessed a premium deposit at policy execution. Should the group experience losses
that are in excess of the accumulated premium deposits of its members combined with reserves
and supplementary insurance, members would be assessed a supplementary or retro assessment
on a pro-rata basis for the years in which the Company was a member.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company has not been made aware of any additional
assessments. Participation in The Mearie Group covers a three year underwriting period which
expires on January 1, 2013.

Smart Meter Initiative

The Province of Ontario has committed to have “Smart Meter” electricity meters installed in
800,000 homes and small businesses throughout Ontario by the end of 2010. Smart Meters
permit consumption to be recorded within specific time intervals and specific tariffs to be
levied within such intervals.

The Company has installed approximately 37,134 (2010 - 35,255) Smart Meters as of the end
of 2011 and anticipates having installed a total of 37,240 Smart Meters upon completion of its
mass deployment.

Contractual Obligations

The Company has contracted Wajax Power Systems (Wajax) to design and build the LFG
facilities for a fixed amount of $13,193,446. In addition, the contract provides for Wajax to
provide operation and maintenance services for a period of ten years beginning with the
commercial operations of the facilities. The Company also has an option to extend the term of
these services for an additional ten years,

The Company has also entered into an agreement with the City allowing the Company access to
the Mohawk Street landfill to install, operate and maintain a landfill gas collection and
utilization system. This agreement expires August 22, 2030,
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13. Subsequent Event

During December 2011, the City announced plans to restructure Brantford Power Inc. to better
meet the Affiliate Relationship Code of the OEB. The major change relates to approximately
60 staff members currently employed by the City becoming employees of Brantford Power Inc.
The restructuring was effective April 1, 2012. At this time, the impact on the Company's future
financial position and results of operations is not reasonably determinable or estimable.

14. Share Capital

Authorized
Unlimited number of commeon shares

2011 2010
$ $
Issued
2,001 common shares 23,895,512 23,895,512
15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss
2011 2010
$ $
Balance at beginning of year (374,658) (342,478)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (143,621) (32,180)
Balance at end of year (518,279) (374,658)

16. Pension Plan

The Company participates in the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS),
a multi-employer plan, on behalf of its employees. The plan is a contributory defined benefit
pension plan, Contributions are 7.4% for employee earnings below the year's maximum
pensionable carnings and 10.7% thereafter. The contribution rates are expected to change to
8.3% for employee earnings below the year's maximum pensionable earnings and 12.8%
thereafter for 2012. During 2011, the Company expensed contributions totaling $24,518 (2010
- $25,413) made to OMERS in respect of the employer's required contributions to the plan.
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17. Electricity Distribution Service Charges

18.

The company is licensed by the OEB to distribute electricity. As a licensed distributor, the
Company is responsible for billing customers for electricity generated by third parties and the
related costs of providing electricity service, such as transmission services and other services
provided by third parties. The Company is required, pursuant to regulation, to remit such
amounts to these third parties, irrespective of whether the Company ultimately collects these
amounts from customers. The Company may file to recover uncollected debt retirement
charges from OEFC once each year, Otherwise, the Company is unable to recover uncollected
amounts formetly remitted to these third parties. The Company retains only its electricity
distribution service charge that is regulated by the OEB.

Electricity distribution service charges comprise:

2011 2010
$ $
Gross customer billings 105,109,712 102,691,543
Less: Pass through charges billed by the Company
Electricity charges paid through to generators (66,724,020) (62,528,186)
Transmission and miscellaneous charges (10,618,115) (12,192,434)
Market service charges (6,186,857) (6,234,467)
Debt retirement charges (6,422,286) (6,442.494)
Total electricity distribution service charges 15,158,434 15,293,962
Statement of Cash Flows
2011 2010
$ $
Changes in non-cash working capital
Accounts receivable 1,133,817 (1,197,678)
Unbilled revenue 358,062 618,746
Inventories 100,711 51,481
Prepaid expenses 37,369 (730)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,035,791) (975,549)
Accounts payable to the City of Brantford 20,939 242,162
Interest payable to the City of Brantford (84,259) -
Payments in lieu of corporate income taxes (1,013,332) 399,334
(482,484) (862,234)
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19. Amortization

20.

21.

2011 2010
5 $
Amortization of capital assets 4,802,671 4,031,289
Amortization of capital assets charged to operations and
capital 271,416 . 266,240
5,074,087 4,297,529
Capital Disclosures
The Company's main objectives when managing capital are to:
. ensure ongoing access to funding to meet any capital needs should needs arise;
. ensure compliance with covenants related to its credit facilitics; and
. align its capital structure with the debt to equity structure deemed by the OEB.

As at December 31, 2011, the Company's definition of capital includes shareholder's equity and
long-term debt. This definition remains unchanged from prior years. As at December 31,
2011, shareholder's equity amounts to $36,253,735 (2010 - $35,197,665) and long-term debt,
amounts to  $55,773,455 (2010 - $55,686,022). The Company's capital structure as at
December 31, 2011 is 61% debt and 39% equity (2010 - 61% debt and 39% equity). There
have been no changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

The Company's long-term debt agreements include both financial and non-financial covenants.
As at December 31, 2011 and as at December 31, 2010, the Company was in compliance with
all covenants.

Financial Instruments and Risk Management

All financial instruments are initially recorded on the balance sheet at fair value except for
certain related party transactions. They are subsequently valued either at fair value or amortized
cost depending on the classification selected by the Company for the financial instrument. All
financial instruments are classified into one of the five categories: held-for-trading, loans and
receivables, other liabilities, held-to-maturity investments or available-for-sale financial assets
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for the year ended December 31, 2011

21. Financial Instruments and Risk Management - continued

Held-for-trading (HFT) financial instruments are financial assets and financial liabilities
typically acquired with the objective of resale or short-term buyback. The carrying amount is
recorded at fair value determined using market prices. Interest earned and gains and losses
incurred are recognized in net income. Cash and cash equivalents and special deposits are
designated as financial assets held-for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes
being recorded in net income at each period end. Derivative liabilities are designated as
financial liabilities held-for-trading and are measured at fair value with changes being recorded
in other comprehensive income at each period end.

Loans and receivables (LR) are non-derivative financial assets resulting {rom the delivery of
cash or other assets by a lender to a borrower in return for a promise to repay on a specified
date, or on demand, usually with interest. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized
cost. Accounts receivable and unbilled revenue are classified as loans and receivables and are
measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost.

Other liabilities (OL) are promises to repay on specified dates or on demand usually with
interest. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities and accounts payable to the City of Brantford,
interest payable to the City of Brantford and due to affiliates are classified as other liabilities
and are measured at fair value at inception, which due to their short-term nature, approximates
amortized cost. Long-term debt and customer deposits are also classified as other liabilities.
After their initial fair value measurement, they are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

Held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets have fixed or determinable payments and maturity,
and management’s intention and ability are to hold to maturity. These financial assets are
measured at amortized cost. The Company does not hold any financial assets under this
classification.

Available-for-sale (AFS) instruments are non-detivative financial assets that are designated as
available-for-sale or that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or held-for-trading financial assets. Available-for-sale instruments are measured at
fair value with unrealized gains and losses recognized in OCL The Company does not hold any
financial assets under this classification.
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21. Financial Instruments and Risk Management - continued

Interest Rate Risk

Interest is paid on electricity customer deposits at a market rate reset quarterly as directed by the
Ontario Energy Board.

Two term facility loans bear interest at floating rates and thus, the catrying values approximate
fair values. However, the Company has entered into two interest rate swap transactions,
derivative instruments designated as a cash flow hedges, the effect of which is to fix the interest
rate on the first $4,369,000 term facility loan at 4.71% and the second $686,000 term facility
loan at 4.97% to the maturity date. The potential replacement cost to Brantford Power Inc. of
the interest rate swaps, representing estimated fair value as presented on the balance sheet, was
$713,683 (2010 -$525,435), which was in the favour of Royal Bank. Net unrealized loss in fair
value of $191,491 (2010 - $42,910) is presented in current year Other Comprehensive Loss.
The Company entered into these interest rate swap transactions to fix the interest rates over the
long term and intends to hold these to maturity at which time there should be no replacement

cost.

Credit Risk

The Company grants credit to its customers in the normal course of business and monitors their
financial condition and reviews the credit history of new customers. The Company is currently
holding customer deposits on hand in the amount of $2,121,057 (2010 - $2,553,322) which is
reflected on the Balance Sheet. The deposits held in the regulated operations are limited to
those allowed under the OEB's Retail Settlement Code. Allowances of $695,000 (2010 -
$626,000) are also maintained for potential credit losses. Management believes that it has
adequately provided for any exposure to normal customer and retailer credit risk.

Liquidity Risk
The Company's objective is to have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due. The

Company monitors its cash balances and cashflows generated from operations to meet its
requirements. '

Prudential Support

Brantford Power Inc. is required, through the Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO),
to provide security to mitigate the company's tisk of default based on its expected activity in the
electricity market. The IESO could draw on this guarantee if the Company fails to make a
payment required by a default notice issued by the IESO. The maximum potential payment is
the face value of the bank letter of credit. As at December 31, 2011, the Company provided
prudential support in the form of a bank letter of credit of $9,375,721 (2010 - $9,375,721).
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21. Financial Instruments and Risk Management - continued

Revolving Term Facility

As at December 31, 2011, the Company has been authorized for a revolving term facilities of
$7,200,000 of which NIL had been drawn upon. The facilities bears interest at prime and are
secured by a general security agreement over all assets of the Company and assignment of
related fire insurance.

Non-Revolving Term Facility

As at December 31, 2011, the Company has been authorized for a non-revolving term facility of
$ 100,000 of which NIL had been drawn upon. The facility bears interest at a rate to be
determined at time of borrowing and is secured by a general security agreement over all assets
of the Company, and an assignment of related fire insurance,

Fair Value of Other Financial Instruments
a) Establishing fair value

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, special deposits,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, accounts payable to the City of Brantford, and
interest payable to the City of Brantford approximate their fair values due to the immediate
or short-term maturity of these financial instruments.

Fair values for other financial instruments, detailed below, have been estimated with
reference to quoted market prices for actual or similar instruments where available, except
for certain related party transactions.

Customer deposits fair value equals carrying value. Interest is paid on deposits on a monthly
basis at a market rate, reset quarterly, as directed by the Ontario Energy Board.

The fixed rate long-term debt facility, maturing December 2032, funded by Ontario
Infrastructure and Lands Corporation (OILC) has an estimated fair value of $2,492,700
(catrying value - $2,212,664). The fair value was determined using the present value of the
cash flows using the quoted OILC market rate for the debt at December 31, 2011, of 3.78%
per annum, (actual rate — 5.14% per annum). Loan is classified as OL with no resulting
adjustment to carrying value.

The fixed rate long-term debt facility, maturing December 2050, funded by the OILC has an
estimated fair value of $5,442,200 (carrying value - $4,769,966). The fair value was
determined using the present value of the cash flows using the quoted OILC market rate for
the debt at December 31, 2011, of 4.00% per annum, (actual rate — 4.95% per annum). Loan
is classified as OL with no resulting adjustment to carrying value.
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21. Financial Instruments and Risk Management - continued

Construction advances funded by the OILC, classified as OL are valued at face value. Upon
completion of construction, the terms of the loans are expected to be 15 and 20 years.

The promissory notes payable to the Corporation of the City of Brantford, classified as an
Other Liability (OL), are valued at face value. It is not practicable within constraints of
timeliness or cost to measure reliably the fair value of these financial liabilities that
originated in a related party transaction.

The fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using pricing models that incorporate
current market prices and the contractual prices of the undetlying instruments, the time value
of money and yield curves.

b) Fair value hierarchy

Financial instruments recorded at fair value on the Balance Sheet are classified using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - valuation based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

Level 2 - valuation techniqﬁes based on inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (ie as prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices);

Level 3 - valuation techniques using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The fair value hierarchy requires the use of observable market inputs whenever such inputs
exist. A financial instrument is classified to the lowest level of the hierarchy for which a
significant input has been considered in measuring fair value.
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21. Financial Instruments and Risk Management - continued

The following table presents the financial instruments recorded at fair value in the Balance
Sheet, classified using the fair value hierarchy described above:

Total financial
assets and
liabilities at fair

Level 1 Level2 Level3 value
h) $ $ $

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 11,277,852 - - 11,277,852

Special deposits 2,073,612 - - 2,073,612
Total financial assets 13,351,464 - - 13,351,464
Financial liabilities

Customer deposits 2,112,132 - - 2,112,132
Total financial liabilities 2,112,132 - - 2,112,132

During the year, there has been no transfer of amounts between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
financial assets or liabilities have been identified as Level 3.
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22. Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes

The Company's income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 consists of the
following:

Temporary differences and carryforwards which give rise to future income tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Regulatory assets ' 643,641 1,658,807
Unrealized losses on derivative liabilities 171,620 123,750
Cumulative eligible capital 157,080 170,370
Employee future benefits 244,390 224,150
Allowance for doubtful accounts 182,438 176,845
Property, plant and equipment (850,393) 1,088,082
Tax loss carry forward 2,150,156 199,310
Future income tax assets 2,698,930 3,641,314
Distributed as such:
Future payments in lieu of corporate income tax asset
Current 182,438 273,845
Non-current ' 2,516,492 3,367,469
2,698,930 3,641,314
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22. Payments in Lieu of Corporate Income Taxes - continued

The impact of differences between the Company's reported payments in lieu of corporate
income taxes and the expense that would otherwise result from the application of statutory rates

is as follows:

2011 2010
$ $
Income tax expense at the combined basis federal and
provincial statutory tax rate 1,268,093 1,517,625
Net change in regulatory assets 8,794 1,161,325
Scientific Research and Educational Development tax
credits (65,453) (147,038)
Capital cost allowance in excess of amortization 1,803,228 (861,563)
Net change in tax reserves (95,268) 47,254
Tax effect of gain on sale of fixed assets (6,373) (15,831)
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible for income
tax purposes 1,056 1,165
Small business deduction (36,250) -
Tax effect of loss carry forwards (1,950,857) (48,910}
Other items (805) (538)
926,165 1,653,489

23. Comparative Figures

Certain prior year figures have been reclassified to conform with the current year's presentation.
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Brantford Energy Corporation

Consolidated Schedule of Segmented Reporting

for the year ended December 31, 2011

Rental and
Distribution Fibre Optics Generation QOther  Consolidated
2011 Segment Profit $ $ $ $ $
Revenues 16,919,050 2,534,788 1,645,306 2,002 21,101,146
Expenses
Operations and maintenance 2,954,060 827,976 510,809 - 4,292,845
Billing and collection 1,921,628 53,841 - - 1,975,469
General administration 1,944,350 345,257 191,226 253,674 2,734,507
Ontario Power Authority 735,093 - - - 735,093
Interest on long-term debt 2,159,034 81,458 200,221 - 2,440,713
Other financing expenses 195,748 - - - 195,748
Capital tax (1,318) (52) (450} 64 (1,756)
Amortization 3,842,300 292,660 667,711 - 4,802,671
13,750,895 1,601,140 1,569,517 253,738 17,175,290
Income before payments in
lieu of corporate income
taxes 3,168,155 933,648 75,789  (251,736) 3,925,856
Capital expenditures 4,611,584 437,297 647,689 - 5,696,570
2010 Segment Profit $ $ $ $ $
Revenues 17,434,385 2,428,459 244,556 992 20,108,392
Expenses
Operations and maintenance 3,338,647 654,916 88,924 - 4,082,487
Billing and collection 2,023,191 45,766 - - 2,068,957
(General administration 2,063,003 331,393 227,578 207,727 2,829,701
Ontario Power Authority 926,976 - - - 926,976
Interest on long-term debt 2,030,478 81,458 64,580 - 2,176,516
Other financing expenses 89,606 - - - 89,606
Capital tax 24,236 2,300 7,176 141 33,853
Amortization 3,374,841 330,285 326,163 - 4,031,289
13,870,978 1,446,118 714,421 207,868 16,239,385
Income before payments in
lieu of corporate income
taxes 3,563,407 082,341 (469,865) (206,876) 3,869,007
Capital expenditures 5,651,096 311,658 1,452,086 - 7,414,840
2011 2010
Total assets by segment $ $
Distribution 99,412,210 104,113,547
Generation 13,654,445 13,310,146
Rental and fibre optics 4,010,166 3,384,110
Other 53,318 44,178
117,130,139 120,851,981
See accompanying notes Page 39
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Brantford Energy Corporation

We provide leadership, guidance and communication links to the corporate family
to assist them in developing and fuHilling their mandates pursuant ta the
shareholder's Declaration and we facilitate lizison with other corporate stakeholders.
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Brantford Energy

An eventful year

A gsentful year for the Brantford Enengy family of companies called on the
respurces of all aur employees—who came through with Tlying colours,
We gcinowiedpe thelr contribution at the ouTset.

Brantford Power

The largest itams for change at Brantford Power were the rollout of
time-of-use billing and the restructuring activity 1o meet Ontaria Enengy
Board expectations and tum the wiility into a truly stand-alone operation.

Implemanting time-of-use billing required a tremendous amount of
effort by staff 1o get the system aperational, plus the actual physical
affort 1o deliver the new meters to customers,

Some residual implications rermain, including OEB approval for cost
recowveny, both for the actual implementation and the cost of our
“strandad” maters, There are also mplications for customaers whose costs,
in my oplnicn, will go up despite how they use electricity, | continue to be
concemed about low income customers despite the programs put in
place to &ssist them. These programs also place 2 greater burden an the
rest of us becawse they are swhsidired out of the costs of suppiy.

The restructuring activity, which required a significant amaunt of affort
by <taff 2t both the City of Brantford and Brantford Pawer, had many
implications for our employees. | know | speak for all Board members
when | express our appreciation for their contineed outstanding
parformance duing 2 period of change. Despite some unceaingy, |
think the process was handled very fairly and we can now move forward
trom hare.

The Ontario Govemment's Green Energy Act also called for a significant
effort on the part of Brantford Power a5 we geared up to connect green
energy producers to cur grid. That & not an insignificant effort in tarms
of time, effort and cost

Throughout this period, owr focus has been to continue to provide reliable
cost-effective sendce to customers. Brantford Fowes, | &m proud 1o 53y,
retes 10th lowest of all wtilities n Ontario in termes of resdiential custormer
rates, This demanstratas that bigger is not better in terms of delivering
lows coSt power,

Analysis of 2011 Net income Contribution

Brantford Hydro

The two major items for the retail eompary were the cantinued
expansion of the NetOptiks fibre network, with &-per cent sales growth,
and our eniry inta the gas water heater rental butiness, which had been
in the planming stage for some time, Gas water heaters congtitule wme
B0t 90 per cent of the markat, so our participation, with our
BRpeTence, was 8 sound business decision,

The addition of staff at both the fibre and retail business negathely
affected the expense [ine, Motwithstanding this fact, AHI's firancial
pesformanca for 2017 exceeded those of 2010. Wa continue ta play for
the long term, looking to build value for our shareholder,

Brantford Generation

The gaad news: we basically broke even as preduction at the Mohawk
Street facility geared up, The bad news: we only broke even, But this was
not & bad outcome at this stage of the Company's developmant,

We continuz to be well below our business plan projections despite the
best efforts of s1aff, The fundamental issus is installing the day cap that
seals the site and gives us yearround production, The cap is scheduled
for comgletion in 2012

Unfortunately delays in reaching full production means we have heen
pravented from mazimizing the higher cantract price for production
during that time period, But it was still a sound business investment.

Financial results

Consolidated net income of $3,000,000 compares 1o 52,216,000 lavel
reported in 2010 and represents 3 $790,000 or 35.7% imprevement
aver the expectzd 2011 budget target. Interestingly, the financial gains
for bath Brantfosd Power and Brantford Hydro wers tax driven,

The pre-tax net income for Brantford Power was actually down 82,1 per
cent. But net income after 1ax was up 22 per cent. This is a part of a
COMM pies ccaunting system in how you handle requlatory sssets and
thelr tax implicatiens as the Ontario Energy Board provided more clarioy

Similarty, Brantford Hygro's pre-tax income was 4.9 per cent below last
year, but net income was up 7.5 per cent.

:._-___Eunman'; - _2|:|11 2010 ;‘.Dﬂﬂ _!
Brantford Energy ;Enrpnratan_n_ . B . 1 | il |
Brantford Povwer Inc 2,230,000 1,873,000 2,219,000
Erantford Hydra Inc. 710,000 660,000 535,000
Brantford Generation Inc. NIl {#7go0) | 2170000

| Total ) 53,000,000 52,216,000 '  $2,537,000




Brantford Power

Focus on semvice'andiquality

Brantford Power Inc. {BPI) continued its strong operating performance and
investment in Braniford’s aleciricity infrasructura to ansure that service
quality and reliabllity are maintained and the City's future needs are met.

Affiliate relationship

Qn April 1, 2012, Brantford Poweer Inc. successfully restructured its
corporate relationship with the City of Brantford 10 ersure compliance
with the Ontaric Energy Board’s Affiliate Relationshio Code and mare
effectivaly align our operations.

The transition affected the Shared Services Agreement hetween the City
and BPI, under which 8P purchased servicas, including employment
servicay, from the City. The Board fully supports this development and
feel that it is very pesitive for everyone concemed, We are particalarly
gratified with the cantinued high perfarmance of our staff during a
pariad of some uncertainty.

Time-of-use billing

Brantford Power customars Began 1o see the impact of time-of-use
{TOU) pricing on bills recaived after Dacember 15, the culmination of 4
three-year transition process.

BPI began collecting the data needed 1o implement TOU pricing from
residential and most small commercial custzmers on November 1

& communication package sent out in October helped prepare
custamers for the transition.

Preparations for TOU pricing, part of a provingial plan to create a culture
of conservation in Ontario, began in 2008, TOU pravides an incentive
for customers to shift andfer reduce electricity consumption at times of
peak demand.

Conservation and Demand Management

Twg additions to staff in 2011 helped lawnch BPI's 2011-2014 sulte of
Conservation and Demand Management {COM) programs. During 2011:
» 588 appliances were retired,

= 524 energy efficient residantial HVAC systems were installed.

» 194 peaksaver devices were installad,

= 79 small businesses replacements of inefficent lighting with energy
efficient lighting.

47 incentive applications were processed and $351,416.68 in
incentives were paid for 38 completed applications,

Capital improvements

Tatal irvestmant in property, plant and equipmant during the yaar
was 4.9 million, compared 1o $5.9 million in 2010, bringing total
proparty plant and equipment to $58.9 million, up frem $58.3 million
in 2010, The Evestmants included:

ch 12}

= Completion of the Brantwood Park and Dundson Street Regwild
Project, including the installatien of about 10 kiometres of new
primary cable, two primary padmount switches and the upgrade of 17
transformers from below grade vaults to abowve graund padmaounts in
orier to improve reliahifity, safety and customer service.

= Complation of the 2011 phase of the Powerline Feeder Retuild
Project, induding & rebuild of about 1.5 kilometres of Powerline
Owerheas Feedar with thres circuits on 70-foot poles 1o increase load
transter capabilities and to meet system comtingencies.

Financial Results

The Company achieved a net mcome of §2,290.000 compared to
51,674,000 lavel In 2010, Pre-1ax net income was actuzlly down 12,1
per cent but was up 22 per cent after tax, part of a complex accounting
system for reguiatory assets and thair tax implications,

The year's parfarmance reflacts a 6. 7% retum on #vesage aguity,
compared to 5.7% in 2010, and a 2011 retum on assets of 2.3%
compared to 1.8% in 2010,

Thie Company's long-term debt has increased by 639,000 resulting fram
$550,000 borrewed from the Omtarle Infrastracture and Lands Corpostion
in 20101 for smart meters and a reduction of existing Roval Bank det that
came cue and was renewed in 2011, The planned bomawing of 54,000,000
far 2011 General Capital Expenditures has been deferred to 2072,

ERANTFORD POWER INC.
COMPARISON OF NET INCORME

2007 - 2011
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Appreciation

Tha Board apprecates the contributions of former Cauncillor Dave
Wrobel, wha keft the Board in 2010, and wha has been replaced by
Cauncilor John Utley,

It"has been a pleasure working with everyona on the Board, It is an
excellant fearn and | am proud to be part of it. | now have the pleasure
of working with Scoit Seint, who was appointed Chair in Agril 2012,



_Bfantfnrd Hydro

Expanading the business

Baantiord Hydro Inc (BHE has made a premising start in achieving its
strategic goal to offer new products and sendces under 8 new home-based
marketing bannes

The espandad product line in the
exuipmen rental busingss now
inclurdes natural gas wates heatars,
tankhess water heaters and water conditioness, compfementing the existing
linz of electric water heaters. The new business primarily came fram rew
residertial customers through refationships develoged with new home
buitders and seevice providers.

.F:':ﬂ enersure

Haome Comfort

NetOptiks T

The fbre diision confinues to NetOpt iks
implement its wholesale business

strategy through expanding its customer base and providing additional
valus-added products and senvices. including the development

of a VOIP (Voice Over (nternet frotocol) telephone service.

As a result of growth in recent years. Neodptiks now has
280 kifometess of fibre installed in Brantford, prowding the needed
bandwidth to the dty's business and institutional community.

Financial results

BHI's net mcome of $7009,000 reprasants an increase of §49,000 over
2010, The increase was recorded while hifng twe new full time positions
during the year 1o focus on increased NetOptiks' sales and to expand the
equipment rental business unit. Both individuals made sigrificant
contributions in the growth of the respective business units, The 2011
performnance translates 1o & retumn on average equity of 30.4%

{2010 — 33.5%) and a retum on assets of 15.8% (2010 - 16.0%).

The chart below dllustrates the multi-year trend of retums faor BHI. Capital
expenditures totaled $46/,000 or 1.4 times the $341,000 expended in 20110,

Thanks to solid financial performanice, BHI has provided generouws dividend
payrments 1¢ its sharsholder, Brantford Energy Corparation that were
subsequently passad anta the City of Brantford 1o the benafit of City
taxpayers. The Company increased its 2011 dividend to §350,000, up from
$300,000 in 2010 and its first dividend payment of $50,000 in 2009.

Appreciation

I'woutd fike to express my apprecation for the opportunity 1o seva as
Chair of the Brantferd Hydro and Brantford Generation Boards during
the year. | lock fonward to atather suocesstul year under the leadership
of Lex Renzella, who was appainted Chair in Aprif, 2012,
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rd Generation

Prospects remain positive

Thanks 1o a significant increase in eleciricity generation during 2011,

Brantford Generation Inc. (BGI) ended the year with & virtual break even

pusition and the Company’s prespects remain pasitive.

The Company reparted @ 3150 loss compared to a $317,000 operating
loss the previous year. Total generation revenues af 31.6 million
compared to $243,000 in 2010, The break even plateau was achieved
degpite a significant increase in operating costs, which are based an
gEnErB[iljﬂ Eng,r-g IJFE'!'E'.I.'H] hnurs

The Compary has not yet been able to achieve the production lavels
anticipated in the original business plan due to the lack of cap at the
Mohawk Streat Landfill Gas Collection and Usilization site, With the

planned Inctafiation of the cap in the second and third quartars of 2013,

BGI anticipates improving the production levels by the end of the year

EGI has been genarating operating losses since incorporation in 2007
while the Company designed, built and commissioned the facilities
Despite the operating loss, the cash flows from eperations totaled
almost 37,000,000 during 2011, a significant improvement over the
$1.4 million operating cash flow deficit in 2010,

Most of this positive cash flow was used to finance capital expenditures
during the year While the Ontario Infrastructure and Lands Corparation
has suspended construction advances pending an evaluation of the
long term outlook of the Company, Mansgement expects 1o secure the
financing for any unfunded capital expenditures, which will provide
funds to begin repaying the arrears in charges from affiliates.

BGI ended the year with 5380,000 in cash but with 5302000 in
negativie working capital. This is consistent with the financing plan
wehich provided for the barmowing m the form of consiruction advances
fram the Ontario Infrastrecture Projects Carporatian

Environmental benefits

During 2071, BO| operations coliected and destroved 12,260,000 cubic
metres of landfill gas, or 77,312 tornes of carbon dicxide equivalents.,
This represents the same greenfouse gas reductions achieved by
remawing 15,159 passanger vehicles from the roadways
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__Financial Statements

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT The accompanying summary cansoidated firanclal statements, which comprisa
AUDITOR ON THE SUMMARY the summary consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2011, the summany
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS consolidated income stetement and retained earnings, and summary consolidated

statement of flows far the year then ended, and related nates, are derived from the
audited financial statements of Brantford Energy Coeporation. The accomparying
summary financial statements, which camprise the summary balance sheer as a1
December 31, 2011, the summary income statement and retained earmings, ard
summary statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and related notes, are
derived from the audited finandal statements of Brantford Power Inc., Brantfond Hydro
Inc. and Brantlord Generation inc. (the “Companees ™) for the year ended December
31, 2011 We expressed unmadified audit opinions on those (consolidated) financial
staterrients in out neports dated Apeil 12, 2012, March 29, 2012, April 12, 2012, and
Aprilt 2,201 2; respectively, Those tconsalidated) financial statements, and the summary
{monsolidated) financial statérments, do not reflect the effects of avents that ooeurred
subsequent to the dates of our report on those {consolidated) finandal statements.

Tor the Shareholder of Brantiord Energy Corparation,
Brantford Power Inc., Brantford Hydro Inc
and Branttord Generation Inc,

| Tha surmmary (consolidatad) finandal statements do not contain all the disclasures
required by Canadian generally accapted accounting principles agplied in the
preparetion of the audited {censolidated) financial statements of the Campanies.
Reading the summary {consolidated] financlal statements, ferefone, is not a substitute
for reading the audited {consalidated) financial statements of the Companies

Management's Responsibility for the Summary

(Consolidated) Financlal Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of & summary of the audilad
(ceesolidated) finandal statements in accordance with Caradian generally accepted
acccunting principles.

Auditor's Responsibility

Dur respansibility is to express an opinion on the surnmary (consolidated) financial
staterments basad an our pracedures, which were conducted in accordance with
Canadian Auditing Standard (CA5) 810, “Engagements to Repom on Summary
Financial Statermants.”

Opinion

1 ouir ooinian, the summarny consolidated financial siatements derived from tha
audited eonsolidated financial statements of Brantfeed Energy Composation and

the summary financial statements derived from the audited finandal statements

of Brantford Power inc., Brantiord Hydro Inc. and Brantford Generation Inc, for the
year ended December 31, 2011 are a fair sumrmary of those {consolidated) financial
statements, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted atcounting principles,

Delpitte & Tauche LL?
Charterad Accountants
Ucented Public Accountants
Burlington, Ontano



Brantford Energy Corporation

SUMMARIZED CONSOLIDATED BALAMCE SHEET

A5 AT DECEMBER 31 2011 (%) 2010 (5)
ASSETS
Current assers 30,957,118 33,080,449
Property, plant and eqiipment 74,905,341 73,214,556
Repulatoey assets 4,147,328 5,041,561
{ther assets 7,120,351 9,510,415
TOTAL ASSETS 117,130,13% 120,851,981
LIABILITIES
Cureent liabilities 15,561,543 17,231,434
Requlatory Gabilites 7378804 11,008,781
Long term debt 55,174,969 54,435 718
Qher Gabilities N 2,790,568 1919373
TOTAL LLABILITIES B0, 876,404 B5,654.316
SHAREROLDER'S EQUITY
Capital stock 13,895,512 73,895,512
Retained samings 12,876,502 11,676,611
Aecumnubated other comprehersive loss 1518,279) [374,653)
TOTAL EQUITY 3,253,735 55,197,645
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 117,130,139 120,857,581
SUMMARITED COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARMINGS
FOR THE YEAR EMDING DECEMBER 31 2011 {§) 2010 (%)
Revenue
Distribution and senice revende 17,676,070 17,710,501
Onher revenue 3425078 2,357,891
21,101,146 20,108,387
e ik L i A
Operalions, maintenance and administration 5,737,914 9,908,111
Onher experses 7437376 6,331,264
17,175,200 16,239,385
Income Before Incomse Taxes 3,925,856 3,869,007
Current and Future Income Taxes 936,165 1,653,488
Mat Income 2,999,691 2,215,518
feetained Eamings - Beginning of Year 11,676,811 10,511,293
Divitends 1,800,000 {1,050,000)
Fetained Eamings - End of Year B 12,875,507 11,676,811
SUMMARTZED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT GF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 2011 (5 2010 (%)
Cash Flaws fram Operating Activities
Mel income 2,955,531 1,215,518
Changes 1o intame rat imvakving cash 6,165,905 4,521,096
Mt change in non-cash working capital balances retated 1o operatians (482, 4B4) [862,234)
8.683,112 £, 274,380
Cash Flaws fram Invesiing Activities .
Purchase of property, plart and equipmant &d special deposits {5,537,800) (7,480,873)
Change in requlatory assets and Babilities {2,780,734) (1,526,024)
{8,318,534) {4,006, B96]
Cash Fraws from Anancing Activities
Proceeds of Issuance of lang-term debi 550,000 8,714,959
Repaymant af lorg-term debt 567,013 (490, 546)
Capital contribution, customer depasite and defered revenues 162,192) 155,010
Dividends {1,800,000) {1,050,000]
11,978, 204] 7,320,463
Met Increase (Decreass) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,514,6261 4,587,947
Cash and Cash Equivabents, Begiraing of Yeas 14735478 o 8,204,531
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 11,477,852 12,792,478




Brantford Power Inc.

SUMMARIZED BALAMCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31 2011 (5) 2010 {§)
ASSETS
Currant assets 28,634,115 31,439,231
Froperty, plant and equipment 59,873,172 58,307,002
Requlatory assats 4.147.328 5,045,561
Other assats 6,784,956 9,337,502
TOTAL ASSETS 98439571 104,130, 2%
LABILITIES
Cunent liabilities 14,303,812 16,385,487
Regualatory liabilites 1385824 11,009,791
Lunyg term debt 40,918,451 40,240,376
her lizlities 1608352 2871501
TOTAL LIABILITIES B 5,161,439 70,548,155
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Capaal stock 22,437,505 22,437,505
Retained earmings 12,354,906 11,515,294
Accurnulated ather comprehensive loss (518,279} (374,658)
TOTAL EQUITY 34278132 33,582,141
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 99,439,571 104,130,296
SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF INCDME AND RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMEER 31 201 (%) 201045
Revenue
Distribution revenus 15,158,434 15,293,962
DPA Canservation programs i T30 1,130,494
Dkt revenise 1,040,134 1,051,030
16,961,582 17,475,487
Expenses
Operations, mantenance and admnisiration 7706172 8,475,942
Other expenses 6195764 5,519,161
o 13,901,936 13,995 102
Income Before Income Tawas 3,059,546 3,480,384
Cuirrent and Future Income Taxes 7003 1606528
et Income 2,753,612 1873456
Retained Earnings - Baginning of Year 11,519,294 10,395,838
Dvidends . (1,450,200} A750,0005
Retained Eamings - End of Year 12,358,906 11,519,294
SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOf THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 2001 (%) 201048
{ash Flows from Operating Activites
Het incams 2,289,612 1,873,455
Changes to income not invaling cash 5,170,194 4,296,971
Met changs in non-cash working capital balances related 1o operations {599 963) 534,028
=5 6,859,837 5,704,455
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of propesty, plant and equipment, and special depesits .423.311) (5,687.891)
Change in requlatery assets and llabifties (2,780,734 (1,526,024
(7,203 a5} (7,213,915
Cash Flows from financing Activities
Proceeds of issuance of keng-tem debt 550,000 5,700,000
Repayment of lang-tem debt (867013 1409, 548)
Capital contrbitions and customer depasits {168,348 126,283
Dividands - 1,450,000 1750,000)
(1,636,360 Jj,SJ‘ﬁBF
Met Increase (Decraase) in Cash and Cash Equivalents [1,98:0,458) 4067277
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 11,180,750 113,473
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Yoar 4,200,282 11,180,750
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Brantford Hydro Inc.

SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT ECEMBER 31 201 (8} 0 (8)
ASSETS
Current as5ets 2,214,326 1,997,313
Property, plant and equipment 2171 2,126,474
Othes assets 15,290 19,353
TOTAL ASSETS 4,503,727 4,124,140
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 7,447 52LET4
Long 1erm debt 1,303,335 1,303,335
Dther liabilifies 240,871 155,337
TOTAL LIBBILITIES 1,951,653 1,961,546
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Capital shock 1,338,006 1,338,006
Retained eamings (Defici] 1,174,058 14,588
TOTAL EQUITY 2513074 2,152,584
TOTAL LLABRLITIES & EQUITY 4,503,727 4,134,140
SUBMARIZED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMEER 11 2011 i8) 200 (4
Rérygriine
Canvia revenue 2,519,576 2419524
Dther revenue 15,321 19,250
2,254,897 2,438,774
Experees
Doerations, maintenance and administration 1,245,701 1,041,254
Cither pxperises 371,066 411,043
1,616,637 1,452,297
Income Before Income Taxes 938,060 936,477
Current and Future Income Taxes 50 326,321
Met Income 709,480 B&0, 156
Hetained Eamings (Deficit) - Beginming of Yiar 814,588 454 437
Dividands [350,000) (300,208
Aetained Earnings (Deficit) - End of Year 1,174,068 BI4568
SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS.
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMEER 31 2011 {8} 2010 (%)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Het incarme 709,480 GE0, 156
Changes 1o income not invohing cash 295,770 113,141
et thange in non-tash wiorking apital balances related to cperations {172.815) (21,379)
] 832,425 451,918
Cash Flows fram Investing Activity
Purchase of property, plant and equipment : 1466,900) {340,895)
Cash Flows from Financing Activilies
Capilal coniributiors, eustomer depasits and defared ravenues 106, 446 36,31
Dividends (350,000) (300,000
(243, 554) (263,609
Tt Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,971 ETRIRT]
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,329,364 981,950
Cash and Cash Equivabents, End of Vear 1,451,335 1,328,364




Brantford Generation Inc.

SUMMARIZED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT DECEMBER 31 2011 (§) 2010 ()
ASSETS
Current zssets 534,142 798,383
Froperty, plart and egquipment 12,761,433 12,785,205
Other assets 375,200 07,3498
TOTAL ASSETS 13,730,775 13,390,936
LIABILITIES
Cusrend liabilies 1,382,147 1,141,874
Lang term daft 12,951,683 1LB52007
TOTAL LIABILITIES . 43EIE0 13,093,881
CAPITAL DERICIENCY
Capial stock, 50,000 50,000
Deficit 1653,085) 652,94 5)
TOTAL CAPITAL DEFICIENCY (B3,045) (602,345
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 13730775 13,390,036
SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF LOSS AND RETAMNED EARNINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 201118 2010 {5}
Revenue
Genevation revenue 1,641,833 243,060
Qther revinup 10,884 1,496
1652817 . 244 556
Exghenses
Cperations, maintenance and adminisiration 554,184 441,990
Other enpanses B33 359, 79
B 1,725,416 841,254
Loss Before Income Taxes [71.599) (586,728}
Current and Future Incoma Taxkes {72,449} (279,764}
Net Loss (150} (316,958
Dieficit - Beginning aof Year [652,945) (335,977}
Defict - End of Year (653,095} {52,845
SUMMARIZED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 2011 (§) 2010 (%)
Cash Flows from Operating Activitles
et s [150) {316, %6E]
Charges 1o incomi not inviakving cash 700,285 320883
Met change in non-cash working capital balances related io cperations 278671 (1,394, 724}
: ' &79,007 B 7,388,305]
Cash Flows from Inuesting Activity -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 647,665 (1,452,086)
Cash Flows from Rinanding Activity
Proceeds of issuance of long-term deht . 3,014,959
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 331318 174,604
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 248, 167 74,163
Cash and Cazh Equivalents, End of Year 580,085 M8 T6T




Brantford Hydro Inc.

Mission

As a growth company, Brantford Hydra Inc, delivers ervireamantally
sustainable telecommurications and anergy related services that enhanoe
the competitiveness of businesses and tha quality of life for customars.,

Vision
The vision of Brantford Hydro Inc. s © become & leader in Brantford
and surrourding areas by growing our business lines thraugh strategic

investments and partrerships erhancing the value af the company 1o beth
our customers and sharehalder.

Values

= YW vahie open and hanest communication with intemal and extemnal
stakeholdes a5 we strive for sucoess In & competitive business
erviranment.

= W seek 1o ensure manlmum customer catisfaction by delivering
axcegtional value through the provision of efficient and dependable
praducts and serdices.

* e value our customars, business parners and other stakeholders and
will treat thern with faimess, respect and integrity as they are integral
COMPONEns [o our SWEs

+ We value innovation in services, thinking and sctions.

= We antidpate and adapt quickly and effectively to the ever changing
business landscape.

Brantford Power Inc.

Mission
Brantford Power prowdes safe, refiable and competitively priced services to
our customers while ensuring excedlent shareholder returns.

Vision
Brantford Power is criven 1o be & leading electricity distribution compary,

Values

» Safety

 (penness and integrity in all relationships
= Innovation and creativity

& A customer focus

» Employves engagement




Thank you to our contributing photographers.

(L to R): Brian Ronald, Sunset on the Rocks — www.flickr.com/people/30100117@N07
Joan Richards, My Bank — www.flickr.com/photos/31527225@N05
Brian Ronald, Please Mr. Postman — www.flickr.com/people/30100117@N07
Carol Rawlings Brantford Reflection — www.flickr.com/photos/callieian/
Jordon Slaght, Expositor Building — www.flickr.com/photos/ruralrooted
Joan Richards, Tulips At City Hall — www.flickr.com/photos/31527225@N05
Asmaa-Deanna Budgell, Brant Monument — www.flickr.com/photos/deannabeth
Randi Scott, Photo Walk Brantford — randiscottphotography.blogspot.ca
Randi Scott, Red Green Blue ~ randiscottphotography.blogspot.ca

Cover photo courtesy of
Randi Scott
randiscottphotography.blogspot.ca

Randi is a freelance photographer that calls Brantford home.
He picked up his first DSLR in 2008 and has been shooting
ever since. This photo was taken with a Canon 50 Il just as
the bridge lights were coming on. He encourages everyone
to go out and discover the beauty of Brantford.
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Brantford Power Inc.
EB-2012-0109
Exhibit 1

Tab 4

Schedule 1

Filed: July 17, 2013

MATERIALITY THRESHOLDS

Chapter 2 of the Filing Requirements for Transmission and Distribution Applications, issued by
the Board on June 28, 2012 states the relevant default materiality threshold as:

“0.5% of distribution revenue requirement for distributors with a revenue requirement
greater than $10 million and less than or equal to $200 million.”

AsTable 1.7 indicates, the lowest materiaity during the past 4 years for BPI is $80,845 To
ensure a thorough analysis, all variances greater than $70,000 have been analyzed.
Table1.7 Materiality Thresholds

» 2008 Board 2012 Bridge | 2012 Test
Description 2008 Actuals | 2009 Actuals [ 2010 Actuals [ 2011 Actuals Year
Approved Year CGAAP)
(CGAAP)
Distribution Revenue
Requirement $16,879,874 | $16,492,164 |$16,169,057 | $16,544,331 | $16,259,794 |$16,260,626 |$17,864,601
Materiality - 0.5% $ 84,399 | § 82,461 | $ 80,845 | $ 82,722 [$ 81,299 [$ 81,303 |$ 89,323
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